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RON SANDLER CHAIRMAN

‘Considerable efforts have been made in recent years to
improve the strategic positioning and operating efficiencies of
Computacenter. The early signs of progress are evident in our
2006 performance.’
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Highlights

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS:

Group revenues of £2.27 billion (2005: £2.29 billion)
Operating profit of £33.6 million before exceptional items
(2005: £29.3 million)

Pre-exceptional profit before tax of £38.0 million

(2005: £35.7 million)

Pre-exceptional diluted earnings per share of 13.8p
(2005: 11.8p)

Final dividend of 5p per share, total dividend 7.5p

(2005: 7.5p)

¢ Return of £74.4 million to shareholders in July 2006
¢ Net funds before customer-specific financing

of £29.4 million (2005: £101.0 million)

OPERATING HIGHLIGHTS:

UK Product business showing benefits of re-engineering
with improved performance and market share

In UK Services, a strong performance from Technology
Solutions unit compensating for slower growth from
contractual services

Continued effort to expand and strengthen the Group’s
services capability, augmented by the acquisition post
year-end of Digica

Good underlying progress in the German business,
however higher than expected costs for the
implementation of new shared datacentre contracts
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Computacenter operations

Computacenter is a leading European
IT infrastructure services provider.

We add value to our customers by advising on [T strategy,

deploying appropnate technologies, and managing elements of their
Infrastructures on their behalf. Our operations in the UK, Germany,
France and Benelux are complemented by a wider global network

of services facilities and partnerships.

BUSINESS ACTIVITY

INFRASTRUCTURE SERVICES

We optimise, support and manage our clients” IT nfrastructures This ¢an include
ntegration and project management, mantenance, help desk and disaster recovery
services It can also mean taking full contractual responsibility for chients’ IT nfrastructures
to reduce ther costs and improve ther senvice levels

PRODUCT SUPPLY

We source, configure and deploy the mest appropriate and cost-effective hardware and
software from a wide portfolio of leading vendors We also provide procurement consufting,
software hcence management, technology disposat and asset management services

TRADE DISTRIBUTION

Through CCD, our trade distnbution dwsion, we provide smaller resellers with hardware,
software and technology configuration

FROM DESKTOP TO DATACENTRE

52% of our revenues come from providing services and
supplyng networking and enterpnse technologies
DEFINITIONS

PERSONAL SYSTEMS DESKTOPS LAPTOPS MONITORS
PRINTERS, PERIPHERALS, CONSUMABLES

METWORK SERVER STORAGE SERVERS (INTEL & UNKX)
STORAGE, NETWORKING & SECURITY

SOFTWARE WINTEL & ENTERPRISE SOFTWARE
SERVICES PROFESSIONAL SUPPORT B MANAGED
SERVICES [

3AD PARTY SERVICES ACROSS GROUP 3RD PARTY

RE SOLD SERVICES

GROUP REVENUE BY BUSINESS TYPE 2006

32%  PERSONAL SYSTEMS

28% NETWORK SERVER STORAGE
1%  SOFTWARE

24%  SERVICES

5% 3RD PARTY SERVICES

L N

QOUR REGIONS
UNITED KINGDOM

Offices Aberdeen, Belfast, Birmingham,
Bnstol, Cardiff Edinburgh, Hatfield, London,
Manchester, Milton Keynes, Reading, Watford

UK REVENUE BY BUSINESS TYPE 2008

2%
29%
12%
2%
5%

k- N LR

PERSONAL SYSTEMS
NETWORK SERVER STORAGE
SOFTWARE

SERVICES

3AD PARTY SERVICES
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OUR GLOBAL REACH Computacenter provides trans-national services across
120 countries through its own operations and its partner network
These are supported by shared service facilities in the UK, Germany,
Span, Seuth Africa and Malaysia

Computacenter sennce facilities

Partner network and

service faciives
GERMANY FRANCE BENELUX
Offices Berlin, Erfunt, Frankfurt, Hamburg, Offices, Antony Bordeavx, Dfon, Grenoble, Lile, Offices Brussels, Amsterdam, Luxembourg
Hanover, Kerpen, Kiel, Leipzig, Ludwigshafen, Lyon, Marseflle, Nartes, Nica, Onéans, Pans, Pau,
Munich, Nuremberg, Ratingen, Stuttgart Rennes, Rouen, Strasbourg, Toulouse, Rossy
GERMANY REVENUE BY BUSINESS TYPE FRANCE REVENUE BY BUSINESS TYPE BENELUX REVENUE BY BUSINESS TYPE
2006 2008 2008

1 19% PERSONAL SYSTEMS

3% NETWORK SERVER STORAGE
% SOFTWARE

4%  SERVICES

5% 3RO PARTY SERVICES

56%  PERSCNAL SYSTEMS

14% NETWORK SERVER STCRAGE
4%  SOFTWARE

12% SERVICES

4% 3RD PARTY SERVICES

50%  PERSONAL SYSTEMS

1%  NETWORK SERVER STORAGE
% SOFTWARE

24% SERVICES

0% 3RD PARTY SERVICES

ST S
DWW R -

2
3
4
5
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Our performance

The steep fali in revenue in recent years was arrested
in 2006. In particular, we grew our services business,
saw continuing growth in enterprise product revenues
and saw increased sales in the UK mid-market.

KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

OPERATING PROFIT GROWTH SERVICES REVENUE GROWTH
GROUP OPERATING PROFIT* 2003-08 GROUP SERYICES REVENUES 2003-08
INCREASE IN OPERATING PROFIT* INGREASE IN GROUP SERVICES REVENUES 2005-06

145 +3.9%

Befora excepbonal charges
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OPERATING COUNTRY HIGHLIGHTS

UNITED KINGDOM

HIGHLIGHTS

+ REVENUES DECLINED BY 5 2% TO
£1 28 BILLIGN (2005 £135 BILLICN)

* QPERATING PROFIT INCREASED TO
£37 5 MILLION {2005 £32 1 MILLION)

* PROFESSIONAL SERVICES REVENUES
GREW BY 10 8%

+ SERVICES BUSINESS ENHANCED VIA
ACQUISITION OF DIGICA LIMITED
FOR £28 MILLICN

* MID MARKET SALES GREW OVER 40%

GERMANY

HIGHLIGHTS

REVENUES GREW BY 5 9% TO
€854 7 MILLION (2005 £618 2 MILLION)

PRAOFITS DEGLINED TO £2 8 MILLION
{2005 £5 0 MILLION)

LOSS OF £8 2 MILLION RELATED TO
START-UP OF 2 CONTRACTS EXPECTED
TO STABILISE IN 2007

UNDERLYING IMPROVEMENT IN
PERFORMANGE INCLUDING STRONG
TRADIRG AT YEAR END

ENTERPRISE PRODUCTS REVENUE GROWTH

GROUP NETWORK, SERVER AND STORAGE {NSS) REVENUES 2004-06

INCREASE IN GROUP NSS REVENUES 2005-06

*0.5%

FRANCE

HIGHLIGHTS

* REVENUES UP 3 8% TO
£307 3 MILUON (2005 £295 8 MILLICN)

* PRE EXCEPTIONAL OPERATING LOSS
DOWN 15 0% TO £6 6 MILLION
(2005 £7 6 MILLION)

*  ONGOING FOCUS ON COST RECUCTION
LED TO EXCEPTIONAL CHARGES OF
£5 0 MILLION (2005 £1 7 MILLION)

*  FAOMISING MAINTENANCE AND
ENTERPRISE BUSINESS GROWTH

www computacenter com

BENELUX

HIGHLIGHTS

+ REVEMUES GREW BY 33 1% TO
£26 5 MILLION (2005 £18 8 MILLKON)

PROFITS DECLINED TO A LOSS OF
£191,000 (2005 £109 000) MAINLY
ATTRIBUTABLE TO OUR
LUXEMBOURG BUSINESS

* NCREASED FPROFIT CONTRIBUTION
FROM PRODUCT SUPPLY

UK MID-MARKET REVENUE GROWTH

UK MID-MARKET REVENUE GROWTH 2005-06

INCREASE IN UK MID-MARKET REVENUES 2005-06

+40°/o
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Chairman’s statement

‘Computacenter made steady progress
during 2006. In each of the Group’s
three principal markets, management
continued to make determined efforts
to improve both strategic focus and
operating performance.’

RON SANDLER CHAIRMAN

Computacenter made steady progress dunng 2006 In each of the
Group's three principal markets, management continued to make
determined efforts to improve both strategic focus and operating
performance

The steep fall n revenue In recent years was arrested in 2006
Desptte contmuing product price erosion, revenues of £2 27 bilion
were only marginally lower than the previous year (2005 £2 29
billion), reflecting irmprovements in the competitiveness of our
offerings and the Increased focus on mid-market sales
opportunities Operating profit, before exceptional charges,
ncreased by 14 5% to £33 8 million (2005 £29 3 mition) and this
figure ncludes approximately £6 2 milion of losses arsing n
Germany associated with the start-up of two shared datacentre
contracts Taking INto account non-operating exceptional charges
of £5 0 millon in France, operating profit ncreased by 3 2% to
£28 5 milon 2005 £277 mithon) A reduction in net interest
receipts following the return to shareholders of £74 4 million i July
resutted in a 3 2% fall in profit before tax to £32 & rmillion {20056
£34 0 milion) The share consolidation that accompanied the return
of capstal had a benefictal impact on the Group's diluted earnings
per share, which rose by 16 9% to 13 8 pence {2005 11 8 pence)
on a pre-exceptional basis, and by 1% to 11 0 pence (2005 1089
pence) after taking exceptional tems into account

Notwithstanding the £74 4 million return of caprtal, the balance
sheet remained strong, with year-end net cash of £29 4 millon
{2005 £101 0 millton}, prior to custemer-based loans and finance
teases Inclusive of these, the net funds of the Group finished the
vear at £10 8 milhon (2005 £100 4 million)

The Board 1s pleased to recommend a final dmdend of 5 0p per
share, bringing the total dvidend for 2006 to 7 5p (2005 7 5p)

This is consistent with our stated policy of mantaning the level
of dvidend until earnings have risen sufficiently to bring the
cover to within the target range of 2 - 2 5x The final dmdend
will be paid on 31 May 2007 to shareholders on the register
as at 4 May 2007

Operating profit In the UK increased by 16 8% to £37 S millon (2005
£32 1 milion), principally as a result of improved gross margns on
product sales Our UK Product Division has been re-engneered n
recent years to serve our customers more cost effectively, involving
considerable investment In new e-commerce systems and a
reorgarusation of resources These improvements are begnning

to show benefit, both in terms of margin and in our market share
We also continue to target the mid-market segment through our
telesales operation, Computacenter Drrect, where revenues in 2006
grew n excess of 40%

Technotogy Solutions, the consutting and systems integration unit
within our UK Services Diision, performed strongly and continued
to enhance its reputation for technical excellence, particularty In
datacentre-related actviies Professional services revenues grew by
106% in 2008 Elsewhere within the Services Division, performance
was mixed Margins n our contractual services business units,
Support Services and Managed Services, remaned attractive, partly
as a result of further centralisation of resources within a shared
services delivery model, however, N a disappointing year for
contract renewals, revenues for contractual services increased

by just 1 0% from the previous year

In January 2007, we concluded the acquisition of Digica Limited for a
consideration of £28 millon, ncluding the settiement of approxmately
£12 milion of debt Digica 1s a leading provider of infrastructure
management and application services for medium sized public and
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OUR STRATEGY

To ensure long-term earrmings growth, Computacenter

15 focused on

¢ Improving our competiiveness by reducing the cost
of sale in cur product supply business

¢ Extending our presence in growth markets, and in
partcular the medum-sized business segment

¢ Broadening the range and depth of our
service actvities

¢ Improving the efficiency of our operations by
deploying shared services facilities across our
customer base

¢ Accelerating the growth of our contractual
services business

private sector organsations, with particular expertise in datacentre

managed services ts operations are highly complementary to those
of Computacenter, and the combination will give both businesses the

opportunity to deliver a far broader offering to ther respective clent
bases This acquisition fits neatly with Computacenter’s strategy of
developing its contractual services business

Computacenter Germany produced revenue growth of 5 9%,
stimulated in the latter months of 2008 by the mpending change
to German VAT, which became sffective in early 2007 Profit

performance in Germany was less encouraging, with operating profit
faling to £2 8 million (2005 £5 0 million), although this decline can be

attributed to higher than anticipated start-up losses of £6 2 million
associated with two shared datacentre services contracts

Nevertheless, this should not be allowed to obscure the encouraging

underying improvernent m the German business Services
revenues, which account for over a third of the German total, grew
strongly, particutarty in Managed Services {both desktop and
datacentre) and in telephony projects, including Voice Over IP

The performance of Computacenter France remaned
unsabsfactory, although pre-exceptional operating losses for the
year reduced from £7 6 million to £6 5 rmillon The restructurng
during the first half of 2005 contributed to this improvement,
although its benefits were mitigated by intense pnce competition
in the French market and further product margin erosion as a

consequence Additional restructuring of the French cost base took
place towards the end of 2006, resulting n an exceplional charge of
£2 4 millon, and we expect the business to show further progress n

2007 towards an eventual retum to profitabity The financial

staternents also show a non-cash exceptional charge of £2 6 millon

representing an imparment of the French non-current asset base

www computacenter com

In October, | was pleased to announce that John Ormerod had
joined the Board as a Non-Exacutive Drrector and also assumed
the charmanship of the Audit Committee John bnngs a wealth
of experience to both roles and | very much look forward to

his involverment with the Group in the years ahead

As we have stated before, 1t 1s difficult to draw any meaningful
insights from current rading until we have completed the first
quarter Notwithstanding this, a considerable amount of work has
taken place in recent years to mprove the strateqic positioning of
Computacenter, through developing significantly the services
capabities and restructuning the cost base of our product
businesses Alongside these intiatves have been a senes of
operational enhancements, amed at improving efficiencies in
our core processes and at upgrading our sales capabilities

The combination of these actmties posiions the Group well

for the future

As always, the credtt for the Group's performance belongs to the

staff, to whom | oifer my wholehearted thanks for ther dedication
and hard work

wAne

on Sandler
Chaiman
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Chief Executive’s review

‘UK Operating profit grew 16.8% to
£37.5 million (2005: £32.1 million).
The improvement came mainly from
better product margins, but also
reflected our success in penetrating
new markets and delivering
operational efficiencies.’

MIKE NORRIS CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

UK

UK revenues declined by 5 2% to £1 28 bilion {2005 £1 35 bilhon)
Modest services growth partially mitigated a product sales decline
of 7 2%, which was pnncipally due to our withdrawal from selected
low margin volurne sales in trade distribution

Operating profit grew 16 8% to £37 5 milkon (2005 £32 1 mullion)
The improvement came mainly from better product margins, but
also reflected our success in penetrating new markets and delvenng
oparational efficencies

Sarvices Division

Overall services revenues grew 3 1%, with strong Technology
Solstions growth compensating for a disappointing 1 0% mncrease
in contractual revenues

We continued to focus on reducing operational costs and iImproving
customer service In particular, wa sought to make more effective
use of shared resources and tools for service detvery The
increased use of the Technical Resource Group, a flexible, shared
engineenng resource, across our clent base, helped reduce

our operational overheads significantly and made our offerings
more competiive

Throughout 2006, we saw a growth in contractual opportunities
ansing from an mcrease n the number of organisations seeking

to spiit ther service contracts across a range of specialist partners
These were typically for contracts of three to five-year terms, rather
than the ten-year service engagements tradmonally placed with
large systemns mtegrators

The Services Dviston comprises thres business units Managed
Services, Support Services and Technology Solutions

Managed Services

Despite a disappointing year for contract renewals, our Managed
Services business unit grew revenues by 6 6% and improved its
profit contrbution

The UK outsourcing market continues 1o grow at 4 — 5% annually
Promising market developments for Computacenter's busmess
include increased interest from medium-sized organsations for
desktop and datacentre managed services

Our growth plans melude the continued expansion and
enhancement of our service desk and datacentre capabiities
This strategic focus led to the acquisition n early 2007 of Digica,
a provider of Infrastructure management and apphcation services
with a particutar focus on medium-sized public and private
sector organisations

Managed Services successes in 2006 nchude a five-year £28 milhon
distrbuted IT and datacentre outsourcing contract with Eversheds,
a five-year £6 millon contract with [T firm Parntty to manage its entire
IT infrastructure Inchuding #s datacentre, and an extension n

scope and terms of our contract with the Nuclear

Decommissioning Authorrty

Support Services

A highty cost-conscious market led to an overall decline in our
Support Services revenues Performance from this business unit
was strongest m the datacentre environment, where pressure on
unit price was less ntense
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Market demand was driven by clients seelang to centrahse and
conschdate ther T nfrastructures to improve service and reduce
both nsk and costs Growth also came from an increase in the
subcontracting of support by large outsourcing orgarisations and
systems integrators, a market upon which we placed particular
focus 1n 2006 Such a partnership approach helped us secure a
BT-subconiracted three-year hardware maintenance and support
contract with Liverpool Direct

Support Services continues to be strong In the traditionally attractve
financal services market In addition, our more recent efforts to
improve our coverage of the mid-rarket, where there 1s greater
growth potential, helped us win busness with approamately 30
organsations that had not previously traded with Computacenter
We also saw growth in areas such as the retall sector, where we
won a three-year contract wath John Lewas Partnership for the
support of all ther deskiops, laptops, prnters and networks across
the UK

Other significant wins in the penod include a three-year contract for
the support of Taylor Woodrow's entire server estate

Technology Solutions

Cur Technology Solutions business grew strongly, with much of

the growth coming from an increase in datacenire projects With

a majonty of Technology Solutions projects in 2006 ncluding a
datacentre component, we sought to develop new offerings to
answer chent demand in thisarea As a resuft, we are now able to
offer an end-to-end datacentre solution for reducing operating costs,
speeding up business applications deployment and Improving
environmental efficency

www computacenter com

SERVICE DESKS EXTENDED

Our service desk capabiities were extended

through our new mult-ingual shared sernce desk
n Barcelona and the facility n Cape Town, RSA '
that comes as part of the Digica acquisition

In addiion, we benefited from closer ntegration with our product
supply business, as an increasing number of chents chose to couple
product supply with the purchase of project services

A 15% increase in revenues from consutting and project
management led to very high professtonal services actity, and
helped the overall profitability of the Technology Solutions business
We now have a substantial pipeline for professional services projects
in the UK and we anticipate further growth in this area

Wa continued to refine our propositions to answer changing client '
requrements For examnple, our shared risk approach to Technology

Solutions projects, which answers a growing demand for assured

outcomes rather than huwred expertise, proved of interest to

organsations seeking to reduce the risk and fix the cost of projects

Signdficant new business in the perod ncluded a five-year contract
with Doncaster College of Further Education, worth £6 milion, for s
new 35,000 sq m campus

Product Division

Our ongong programme of re-engineenng our product business to

delver improved profitabiity and growth began to bear frut in 2006

Following a deciine in product revenues in 2005, we saw a

stabiisation in revenues from end-user sales n 2006 !

A1 7% increase in product gross margins reflects our success

inmplementing mproved business controls retating to product I
purchasing and supply We also continued to lower the cost of sale |
through use of a ighter-touch sales model for product-only clients,

enabled through our deployment of mproved e-commerce systems
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Chief Executive’s review

UK SOFTWARE REVENUES UP T%

Qur UK Software busingss, where wea increased
our investment in dedicated sales and markeing
resources, grew revenues 7% dunng 2006

We benefited from our evohing product mix, with a still greater
proportion of sales coming from network, server and other
enterpnse technologies This was partly drrven by the increased
cnticalty of enterprise systemns and partly by the growth of our
Technology Scluttons business, where such technology is often
part of a bundled solution

The Product Dmsion comprises four business units Corporate
Hardware, Software, Computacenter Direct and CCD

Corporate Hardware

Technology sales to end-users increased slightly, although following
a major Investment in the latest version of our webshop, Connect 6,
we expenenced 28% growth in online revenues Web sales now
comprise over 16% of all hardware orders

Product margins benefited from an increase in business with

the financial sector, as well as the growing enterprise technology
proportion in the product mix We saw particularly strong growth
n our Sun, EMC, Cisco and IBM enterpnse business

With pnice competition still ntense n the product market, the
Corporate Hardware business sought to enhance the range of
supply-related value propositions it provides to customers In
particular, we focused on developing and communicating our
offerings in the areas of managed mutti-vendor procurement
contracts, extensive multi-site deployments and environmental
advisory services

Significant new product business includes a £50 miflion contract
with the ATLAS Consortium, covering managed supply and
deployment services to support the Defence Information
Infrastructure (Future} programme within the UK Ministry of Defence

GROUP SERVICES CONTRACT BASE 2003-06

CONTINUING CONTRACT BASE GROWTH

QOur servicas contract base across the Group
continued to grow year on year

Software

Our Software business grew revenues 7% durng 2006 Growth
was across our vendor base, and partly a result of an expanding
software services market

The ncreased threat of vendor audits, nsing merger actmity and the
business distuption of off-shoring, all drove clients 1o look for greater
securtty, efficiency and agiity in software purchasing Many of these
crganisations sought help to ensure compliance, consolidate mult-
vendor agreements and renegctiate licence terms

To capture better these opportunities, we ncreased our nvestment
in dedicated sales and marketing resources Whilst this has had
some short-term impact on this unit's profit contribution, t 18
envisaged that future software busmess growth will be achieved
without the requirement to add further to the cost base

Significant successes n 2006 mclude a renewal of Microsoft
icences with BAA in a three-year Drect Enterprise Agreement

Computacenter Direct

This business unt, targeting the growing medum-sized business
market, continued to grow strongly, with improved product margns
and revenue growth n excess of 40%

Recrutment of addihional sales staff helped drive a 23% increase m
product volumes, predominantly refated to server technology This,
together with our increasing success In attaching deployment and
integration senices to technology supply, contributed to an
ncreased profit contribution from this unit

Computacenter Direct continues to attract new clients, and now
has over 1,500 trading customers We are confident of contnuing
growth in the mid-market sector
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CcCD

Following a management reorganisation in 2006, CCD, our trade
distribution arm, sought to reduce its exposure in a small number
of unprofitable, tugh volume accounts As a result, we saw nsing
margins and profitability in the second half of the year

Profit performance also benefited from a merger of the two
operating units compnsing CCD, reducing our operating costs and
streamiining the sales operation Increased sales focus led to a
number of notable successes during the year, in particular the
growth of our IBM System X server revenues, which significantly
increased CCD's market share In these systerns, and the successful
introduction of a focused server-based computing initiatve In
partnership with HP

The management team was further strengthened in the last quarter
and a comprehensive sales development plan has been nitiated to
underpin the business during 2007 and beyond Although market
conditions are expected to reman fiercely competitive, management
beleve that we are well placed to build on the improvements seen

in 2006

RDC

After breakung even n the previous year, RDC, our technology
recycling and remarketing operation, returned to profit in 2006
Our margin on remarketing services increased by 151% and we
continued 10 be profitable n Germany

Our success in 2008 was in part due to a renewed sales focus in
the first half of the year, with the launch of Computacenter Asset
Recovery Services and the creation of a new frontiine sales team
instrurmental in a number of servce wins

Throughout 2006 we saw significant successes in both our direct
busness, and business won with Computacenter accounts We

www computacenter com

SERVICES GROWTH IN GERMANY

In Gesmany, we continued to attract new business,
leading to 22% contract base growth

now see a healthy sales pipeline, which we anticipate should provide
a secure platform for profit and revenue grewth in 2007

Germany

Computacenter Germany recorded revenue growth of 5 9% to
£654 7 milion, although full-year operating profits decined 44 2%
to £2 8 million (2005 €5 O mullion)

The fall In profitability was largely due to the implementation of two
shared datacentre contracts, and the creation of the underlying
infrastructure, which collectively produced a loss of approximatety
£6 2 millon Whilst elements of this were planned costs of start-up,
these losses were on an unacceptable scale and considerable
efforts were made in the second half of the year to rectify the falings
We are confident that this has now been achieved

This has obscured to some extent a marked undertying performance
improvement in the German business Trading was particularty
strong at the year-end Although this may signify a developing
recovery In the German market, some of this growth appears to
have ansen from additional spending by clients ahead of the VAT
increase in Germany in early 2007

Sales growth also came from an increase in Managed Services
busness, as chents tumed to outsourcing to help reduce IT
operational costs Overall, we continued to attract new business,
with some significant wins and renewals leading to 22% contract
base growth

As elsewhere, an increased proportion of our product business
came from sales of enterpnse technology We saw particuter growth
n networking offerings, reflecting the further commoditisation of

the PC and laptop business and our increased focus on business-
led sohutions
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Chief Executive’s review

ERFURT SERVICE DESK IN-SOURCED

To support the provtsion of a more international
service to large global customers such as Adidas,
we ook full responsibiity in October for our
prevousty partnered Senice Desk facity and

its 120 employees in Erfurt

In our Technology Solutions business, we continue to see the fruits
of the nvestrnent made five years ago n the development of Voice
Over P telephony and Voice on Demand Revenues from this
competrtive but highly profitable market segment were twice

ther 2005 value and we expect them to continue to grow
attractively in 2007

To support a growing reguirement for the provision of a more
international service to large global customers such as Adidas, we
took full responsibiity In Cctober for cur Service Desk facility and its
120 employees m Erfurt This was previously managed via a joint
venture with Sellbyte! Through stronger integration with our other
faciities m Mitton Keynes (UK) and Barcelona, this will help us butdd
a more integrated mtemational service centre network

Significant wins nclude a five-year outsourcing contract with Urion
Investment [T for DZ Bank Gruppe, worth up to £60 million in
product and service sales We will provide an end-to-end service
to include support of approxmately 10,000 workstations and the
outsourcing of the client's datacentre, with all service managed on
our systems

Other successes nclude a three-year Europe-wide contract

with Airbus, worth 30 milion euros, and major extensions of our
contracts with Daimiler Chrysler, for network support of its Mercedes
Technology Centre, and with Bosch, to nchude the support of
38,000 workstatons over a threg-year term

France

Performance in France remains unsatistactory, atthough pre-
exceptional operating losses reduced 15 0% to £6 5 million {2005
£76 millon) as revenues grew 3 9% to £307 3 milkon (2005 £2958
milion) Taking into account the effect of exceptional charges, which
related to additional restructunng of the French business, operating
loss increased from £9 3 mulion n 2005 to £11 5 milhon

Despite further product margn erosion over 2006, we saw a
slowdown of the trend over the first nine months and a slight
improvement i margins n the last quarter Encouragingly, services
margins improved over the year and we completed the final stages
of business take-on of our largest muttnational senaces contract

We benefited from our ongong focus on reducing the cast base in
France in both people and non-people expenses and we intend to
continue with these measures in 2007 We also saw Some promising
product and services sales growth, particularly n the second half of
the year

The growth of our profitable maintenance business was ancther key
focus, with the launch of a comprehensive sales traning programme
designed to mprove the identification, quahfication and capture of
these opportunities We are already starting to see the benefits of
this programme, with a signficant ncrease in maintenance business
over the period and into 2007 A similar sales training programme for
enterpnse products, which are less subject to pnce pressures than
desktop systems, led to an expansion of our team of IBM technical
consuitants and helped grow our {BM revenues by 13%
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KEY CUSTOMER WINS
Significant new Group business won in 2006

ncluded John Lews Partnership, the UK Defence

Ministry, Bosch and Texas Instruments

Significant wins include a three-year managed services contract
with Texas Instruments France, worth approxamately £2 million
The contract scope includes help desk provision, Installations,
maintenance, disposal and support for more than 3,500 devices
We also secured a five-year enterprise and professional services
contract with the Centre National d'Etudes Spatiales (CNES) worth
£13 milion

Benelux

Our Benelux operation recorded an operating loss of £191,000
(2005 £109,000) The Belgum and Netherlands business achieved
a break-even result, In spite of costs ansing from the development
of new communication and storage business units to address nsing
demand in those markets Our sub-scale Luxembourg operation
recorded an overall loss

Product supply performed strongly, with an increased profit
contribution, as did Managed Services, manly from the growing
financial sector

Key wins included a renewal on product supply with Pioneer, a
technology refresh project at SWIFT, a desktop managed services
contract with Burgo Ardennes, and a CRM progect for the European
salesforce of Ansell

www caomputacenter com

FRENCH MAINTENANGE GROWTH

We are starting to see the benefits of a new sales
traning programme in France, with a significant
ingrease in our profitable maintenance business

International

We saw increasing client interest in our nternational capabilities

In 20086, with a number of contract wins and extensions having a
multi-country component Typically these were with multinational
crganisations headquartered in Europe, such as Cogris, which
outsourced s glokal IT nfrastructure o Computacenter, including
management of its datacentre and service desk

Cur service faciities have been extended through the bullding of

amult-ingual shared service desk n Barcelona and through the

service desk capability n Cape Town, RSA that comes as part of
the Digica acquisitton This enables Computacenter to determine
the mast suitable logation, in terms of both quality of service and

cost, when configupang service contracts for customers

Mike Nfoms
Chief Executive Officer
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Risk management

CONTROLLING RISK

The Group seeks to dentify and control nsks,
which are categonsed as strategic nsks,
operahonal nsks or hazards

The Group has wide ranging programmes designed to identify
nsks, develop and implement an appropriate range of controls,
and ensure that these controls are suitably resiient These
activities are further described in the Group’s Corporate
Governance Statement  Summansed below are some of the
principal nsks that present a material threat to the successful
implementation of the Group's strategy, categonsed nto strategic
nisks, operational rnisks and hazards Financial nsks are described
in the Finance Director’s Review

Strategic nisks are those ansing principally from external events
These include the following

* The Group's profits are exposed to continuing erosion In the
unit price of the [T equipment that it sells This 1s mitigated
by efforts to reduce costs and by continually refocusing the
seling actvity on those products and services that offer
the highest margin potential

« A significant proportion of the Group’s revenues anse from
a small number of key vendors who have congiderable scale
and market strength Detenoration of vendor terms present
a nsk, which the Group seeks to mitigate through further
growth of its multi-vendor portfolio, continuing to butld
Its services activities, and the development of strong
customer relatonships

* |n the Group's contractual services actvities, there is a trend in
the market towards shorter-term service engagements and the
requirement to commit to quantified cost reduction over the
term of the contract The Group seeks to ritigate these risks
through continuing to develop higher vatue service offerings
and through widening the client base, particularly n the mid-
market sector

Operationat risks are those arising from faillures in internal
processes, people and systems These nisks, which can be
mitigated by nternal controls and preactive intervention, include
the following

* The dynamic nature of the industry brings the risk that new
generation service contracts may be entered into, without a
full comprehension of all of therr commercial consequences
Management controls are constantly being reviewed across
the Group to minimise this risk

* Annability to attract and retain key management and cperating
personnel could damage operational efficiency In response,
the Group seeks to mantan its focus on succession planning,
talent identification and traning and development

Hazards constitute penls such as fire and flood, which could
harm the Group's ability to deliver services and products Whilst
the likelihood of the loss of an entire facility of the Group has
been assessed as low, the severity may be significant In
mutigation, nsk prevention and control measures are mantained
and continuity plans are implemented and monitored through a
test plan Similar mitigation has been applied to the nsk of
panderric liness The Group also mantains insurance cover for
certain of these nsks
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Our clients

At Computacenter we are committed to delivering IT
services and solutions that enable our customers to meet
their goals. The following four pages demonstrate just
some of our client engagements and the benefits we have
realised for these organisations.
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Our clients

Cognis
Global standardisation and
increased business agility

COGNIS
INDUSTRY SPECIALIST CHEMICALS

Moare than ever, orgarisations today look to
the T function to gve them the business agiity
they need to stay ahead of ther competitors
For Cogrus, that means being able to flex its IT
resources In ine with demand and freeing ts
staff to focus on applications devetopment By
outsourcing its global IT infrastructure to
Computacenter, Cognis 1s able o offer
datacentre services via an ‘on-demand’
model, allowing the company to adjust quickly
to changes in the market The contract also
includes the operation of Cognis’ complete
service desk in 14 languages, desktop
services for 6,500 workstations, and 120 local
area networks acress 30 countnes A more
standardised approach to procurement and
support 1s also helping Cogris reduce the
costs of [T procurement and support
BUSINESS CHALLENGE

Acheve greater business agility through a more
standardised, cost-effective [T nfrastructure

THE SOLUTION

Quisource global IT nirasucture

RESULTS

Lower purchase and support Costs

Increased business aglity

Freed up IT resources

KEY 5ERVICES

intermatonal senvice desk

Managed datacentre

Technology mgraton and m-out

CUSTOMER
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Unipart
Supporting business growth
and reducing overneads

www computacenter com

UNIPART

INDUSTRY LOGISTICS AND DISTRIBUTION

Competitve advantage can be greatly influenced
by [T systems, 5o it s essental that companes
have access to the nght technology to support
business growth When Unipart Logishcs
ealised that s currert nfrastructure could not
support the upgrade of a core supply chan
application, ¢ embarked on a complex refresh
programme By workang with Computacenter,
Ungart was able to de-nsk the rof-out of the
new server ard storage infrastructurs and
ensure it maxamsed 4s imestment in the new
platform. As a result of the new nirastructure,
Ungpart wil not only be able to enharcs its
logisbics sernces to customers but also reduce
BUSINESS CHALLENGE

Ensure IDQISHIcS senvices reman competive

and prevent the escalation of operatonal costs
THE SOLUTION

Depioy a cost-effectve sarver nfrastructura that
©an support new senvices and appications
RESULTS

Lower total cost of ownershep

increasad fiexbiity

Abiity to BUNCH NEW CUSIOMEr senices

KEY SERVICES

Ptanning and design

Product supply

Insiataton

CUSTOMER
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Our clients

Arcadia
Improved end-user service and
40% operational cost reduction

ARCADIA
INDUSTRY RETAIL

Relance on deskiops for access to core
appicatons and systems means that hardware
avalahdlty has become a key concem for
comporata T departments  To ensure it could
provcle users with a responsve and cost-
effective service, Arcada Group consolidated
its deskiop mantenance contracts Mo a single
end-to-end agreement with Computacenter
The agreement covers a range of senaces,
such as configuration, asset disposal and
hardware mstallabon, across Arcada's 3,000
desktops as well as some of its panter and
server estate The seven-year partnership with
Computacenter has not only enabled Arcadia
to drarmatcaly reduce its IT operational costs
but also free up mtemal [T resources and
achienve consistent service defivery

BUSINESS CHALLENGE

Ensure user productvty 1s not smpactad by poos
dasktop manteranca

THE SOLUTION

Sign up to an enc-to-end dasktop Mmantenance
contract that offers ongong cost sangs

RESULTS

Improved service levels and fix rates

Signficant reduchon N marntenance costs
Simplified suppier managerment

KEY SEAVICES

Prudms:.lpm

Rer-deployment and cispasal

Marterance

CUSTOMER
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North Yorkshire County Council
Optimised datacentre and
desktop systems

www computacenter com

NCORTH YORKSHIRE
COUNTY COUNCIL

INDUSTRY GOVERNMERT

To meet efficiency and regulatory complance
objectives, North Yorkshire County Council
embarked on a compiex transformation of ts
ICT infrastructure The overhaul encompasses
arange of systems and processes — from
backup and email archrang to desktop

compliance with the Freedom of Information
Act Thanks to thes and other ICT projects, the
councl will be able to enhance staff productty
and raduce overheads as well as support the
future needs of the council and resdents
BUSINESS CHALLENGE

Meet govermment targets for efficaency and reguiatony
complance

THE SOLUTION

Deploy new tachnologes and best practice processes
to transtorm ICT nirasiructue

RESULTS

Irnproved efficency

Enhanced reguiatory compliance

Froed up [T msouces

Reduced operatonal costs

KEY SERVICES

CUSTOMER
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Finance Director’s review

‘Revenues for the year of £2.27 billion

represented a reduction of 0.7% from
2005. Pre-exceptional pre-tax profits

improved from £35.7 million to

£38.0 million.’

TONY CONOPRY FINANCE DIRECTOR

Turnover and profitability

Revenues for the year of £2 27 bilkon represented a reduction

of 0 7% from 2005 A decline n product revenues of 2 0% was
partially offset by an ncrease in services revenues of 3 9%
Revenues in the French and Gemman businesses improved in

the year, whereas revenue in the UK declined by 5 2%, principally
due to our withdrawa! from selected low margn volume sales

In trade distribution

Pre-exceptional pre-tax profits mproved from £35 7 milion to £38 0
milion Taking into account exceptional charges in France of £17
rmilion and £5 0 millon respectively, profit before tax reduced from
£34 0 miltion to £32 9 million

Operating profit
Group pre-exceptional operating profit mproved by 14 5% from
£29 3 miflion to £33 6 mition

¢ Inthe UK, despite a 5 2% fall in revenues, gross profit increased
by 71%, with the gross margin percentage mproving from 12 6%
to 14 2% The gross margin mprovemnent s due to both improved
business mix and some underlying margin improvement Cther
aperating expenses increased by 4 8%, partially as a resuft of the
reclassification of approximately 90 heads from ‘cost of goods
sold’ to ‘other operating expenses’, following the 2005 business
restructure UK operating profit ncreased by 16 8% from £321
million to £37 5 midhon

Product szales in the UK declined by 7 2%, pnncipally reflecting
our withdrawa! from selected low margin volurme sales in our
trade distribution business In the end-user business product
prcing contnued to be under pressure throughout the year,
however margins improved, mainly as a result of a more
favourable business rmix

Services revenues in the UK ncreased by 3 1% The growth was
driven by a 10 6% improvernent in professional services revenues,
whereas support and managed services revenues grew by just
10% Despite a disapponting year for contract renewals,
managed services revenues improved by 6 6%, however this

was offset by a decline in support services revenues, which

were subject to substantial unit cost pressures

In Germany, operating profit fell from €5 0 milion to £2 8 million
Revenues increased durng the year by 5 9%, with a 6 3% growth
N product revenues and a 5 1% growth n services In 2005 we
reported resold third party services within managed services
revenues in Germany We now can separately identify these
revenues, and now report this within product revenues and

have accordingly reclassified £12 9 millon of revenue n the

2005 comparatve amounts

The fall in profitability was largely due to the implermentation of
two new shared datacentre contracts, and the development of
the underiying infrastructure, generating a loss of some £6 2
miflion Whilst these two new contracts reflect Computacenter’s
objective of talang more end-to-end responsibility m our )
infrastructure service contracts, these intial losses much greater
than expected Steps have now been taken to rectify the specific
problems associated with these contracts and to improve the bxd
review process in Germany to avoid any such unanticipated
losses in the future

Setting aside these contracts, the underying business has
performed more strongly in 2006, with trading particularty strong
towards the end of the year, partly as a result of clients bnnging
forward ther purchasing decisions ahead of the VAT increase n
Germany in early 2007 In addition, tighter cost controls ensured
that operating expenses reduced by 2 5% to £80 6 mifion,
despite a 11% increase m ndirect headcount
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TABLE 1 - GROUP REVENUES

www computacenter com

Half 1 Halt 2 Total
2004 12289 11817 24106
2005 11516 11336 22852
2006 11149 11550 22699
06/05 3 2%) 19% {07%)
TABLE 2 - PRE-TAX PROFIT (pre-exceptionals)

Half 1 % Half2 % Total %
2004 301 24% 378 32% 679 28%
2005 99 09%% 258 2.3% 357 16%
2006 145 1.3% 235 20% 380 17%
06/05 46 8% {8 9% 6 5%

In October 2006 we disposed of the shares in cur associate,
HelpByCom (a Servica Desk facility), and i return took full
responsibility for thewr facility and its 120 employees in Erfurt,
resulting N a profit on disposal of £0 3 milion

* |nFrance the financial performance was unsatisfactory albent
showing some signs of Improvement, with the pre-exceptional
operating loss reducing from £7 6 million to £6 5 millon Taking
exceptional charges into account, the operating loss increased
from £8 3 millon to £11 5 millon Despite revenues growth of
3 9%, product pnce declines affected margin performance
The gross profit percentage reduced from @ 8% to @ 0% n 2006,
although towards the end of the year there was a slight margmn
mprovement The usual seasonal factors drove an improvement,
resuling in a reduced loss of £1 1 midlon n the second half
of 2006

Services margins in France improved over 2005 as a result of the
services transformation project, (which resulted in redundancy
costs of £1 7 millon n the first half of 2005) Ongoing cost control
contributed to a further reduction in other operating expenses of
6 5% to £34 2 milion In order to better align the ndirect cost
base of the business, an additional €2 4 milklon redundancy
charge has been incurred dunng the fourth quarter, classified
within exceptional charges

* Revenues n the ‘Benelux' region increased by 33 1% principally
as a result of one very large low margin product fulfilment deal
As a result, gross margin percentage reduced from 11 6% to
9 3% in the year Other operating expenses increased by 9 5% to
£2 6 milion due to investment in a communication and storage
business unit Overall the operating performance was a loss
of £0 2 milion, compared to an operating toss of £01 mulion
n 2005

Exceptional items

A £5 0 milion exceptional charge has been incurred in France n
the year A restructure of the French indrrect cost base took place
towards the end of 2006, resulting in an exceptional charge of £2 4
milkon A redundancy charge of £17 milion, which had previously
been classified within operating expenses In 2005, has been
reclassified Into exceptional charges in order to provide an
appropnate comparatve

There was a further non-cash exceptional charge of £2 6 million, !
representing an mpairment of the French non-current asset base ‘
as the short-term forecast cash flows did not support the pre-

imparment asset valie ‘

Return of capital and interest

Cn 3 July 2006 the Company effected a 5 for 6 capital
recrganisation As a result of consclidation, 190,876,000 ordinary
shares of 5p became 159,063,000 ordinary shares of 6p

There was an assocated cash outflow of £74 4 milion, and as a
consequence the net Interest recewed in the second half of 2006
reduced in the order of £1 S milllon

Earmings per share and dividend

The return of capital durning the year has helped to enhance earmings
per share measures n excess of the mproverments delivered by
profitability gans Diduted earmings per share, on a pre-exceptional
basis, Increased from 11 8p to 13 8p, an increase of 16 9% After
exceptional charges, diluted earmings per share increased by 0 9%
from 10 9p to 11 0p It is our intention to mantan the total dvidend
for the year at 7 5p per share The final dwvidend will be payable on
31 May 2007 to registered shareholders as at 4 May 2007
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Finance Director’s review

‘On 3 July 2006 the Company effected a
for 6 capital reorganisation. As a result of

the consolidation, 190,876,000 ordinary

shares of 5p became 159,063,000 ordinary

shares of 6p.’

TONY CONOPHY FINANCE DIRECTOR

Cash flow and working capital

2008 2005 Duft
Inventory days 2 23 0
Trade recevable days 58 51 7
Trads payable days 40 39 -1

Inventory levels decreased in line wath product revenue from £100 2
millior: to £94 6 million whilst inventory days remaned static at 23
The product business mix continues to shift towards enterprise
sales, particularty around the end of the year, and these tems are
often not held in Inventory, being usually delivered directly from the
vendor to the end-user

Trade recewable days increased substantially from 51 to 58 Whalst
revenues are O 7% lower, a higher proportion of sales were recorded
n the last month of the year, which has resulted in the trade
recevable days calculation being substantially tugher

than s nomally the case Germany was particularty affected,
expenencing sales in Decernber approxamately 40% ahead of
December 2005

Trade payable days ncreased from 39 to 40 Due to the higher levels
of business towards the end of the year, the trade payables balance
and trade payable days were higher at the end of December 2005
However trade payable days did not ncrease as much as trade
recevables, as the payment term with our major vendor s 14 days

The cash generated from operations was £25 4 million {2005 £66 0
milior) In relation to operating profit, cash generated from
operations was 88 9% (2005 238 5%) Tha movement in working
capital was £24 2 milkon

Cash and cash equivalents reduced by £73 9 milhon from £132 9
million to £59 0 midlon Operating profit pror to depreciation and
other non-cash charges together with net interest earmings totalled
£54 0 milion These earnings financed working capital outflows

of £24 0 millon, corporation tax payments of £12 0 milion, capital

expenditure of £9 0 millon and dmdends of €13 3 milion The key
drver therefore for the reduction of cash and cash equivalents was
the £74 4 rrulion retumn of capital n July 2006

Taking into account the factor financing facility in France, net funds
pror to custorner-specific finance leases and loans reduced by
£71 6 milon from £101 O million to £28 4 milion

Ounng the year, we entered Into a number of customer-specific
finance leases and loans, principally in relation to new datacentre
offerings n the UK and Germany Taking these into account, total net
funds at the end of the year were £10 8 million, compared to £100 4
million at the start of the year, the reduction mainly driven by the
return of capital mentioned above

Acquigitions

On 4 January 2007, Computacenter plc completed the acquistion
of Digica Group from Bridgepont Capital, Lyceum Capital (through
its investment in Fox IT) and management shareholders The
consideration paid for Digica amounted to £15 8 milion, n addition
to which Computacenter settled assurmned dabt of £121 milion, both
of which were satisfied from cash reserves

Taxation

The effective tax rate {based on pre-exceptional profit before tax)
for the Group was 36 9% compared to 38 1% in 2005 The
improvement 18 manly atiributable to the reduction of unreleved
operating losses In France This accounted for a 6 3% differential
in the tax rate from the standard 30%

Financial instruments

The Group's financial Instruments comprise borrowings, cash

and hquid resources, and vancus items that anse directly from

its operations The Group occasionally enters into hedging
transactions, principally forward exchange contracts or currency
swaps The purpose of these transactons s to manage currency
nsks ansing from the Group's operations and its sources of finance
The Group's policy remans that no trading in financial nstruments
shall be undertaken
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TABLE 3 - REVENUES BY COUNTRY
2006 2005
Half 1 Hatf 2 Half 1 Half 2
UK 6611 6204 7155 6358
Germarny 2977 3570 3000 3182
France 417 1856 1262 1696
Benelux 144 120 299 100
Total 11149 1,550 11516 11336
TABLE 4 - OPERATING PROFIT BY COUNTRY
2006 2005
Half 1 % Half 2 % Half 1 % Half 2 %
UK 164 2.5% 211 3.4% 149 21% 172 27%
Germany 05 02% 23 07% 19 (05%) 65 2.0%
France B4 {3.8%) (1} {0.6%) 62 {4 9%) (14) {0 8%)
Benelux {01 (0.6%) {01} {0 9%) 01) {11%) 00 (0 0%)
Total 114 1.0% 222 1.9% 71 0.6% 223 2.0%

The main risks ansng from the Group's financial nstruments are
interest rate, Iquidity and foreign currency nsks The overall financial
instruments strategy s to manage these nisks in order to minimise
their mpact on the financial results of the Group The policies for
managing each of these nsks are set out below

Interest rate nsk

The Group finances its operations through a muxture of retained
profits, bank borrowings, rvocs factonng in France and finance
leases for certan customer contracts The Group's bank
borrowings, other facilities and deposits are at floating rates No
nterest rate dernvative contracts have been entered into We wall
continue to monitor this position {0 ensure that the mterest rate
profile 1s appropnate for the Group When long-tern borrowings are
utthsed, the Group's policy 1$ to mantan these borrowings at fixed
rates to imit the Group's exposure o interest rate fluctuations

Liquidity nsk

The Group’s policy 1S to ensure that it has sufficient funding and
committed bank facilities in place to meet any foreseeabls peak

n borrowing requirements At 31 December 2006 the Group had
£53 9 millon (2005 £55 0 milion) of committed bank facilibies with
maturites for up to 1 year, of which 81 3% (2005 B3 5%) were drawn
down In addition the Group has £79 0 miullion (2005 £59 2 million)

of bank overdraft faciities

The Group’s net funds pesition at the year-end was £10 8 million

In combination with the above faciities the Group has a strong
covenant and approximately £60 milion of freehold property wiuch
combined should provide access to substanial addtional funds to
finance working capital movermnents and planned capital nvestment

Foreign currency nsk

The Group operates prnimarily in the UK, Germany, France, and the
‘Benelux’ countries, using local borrowings to fund its operations
outside of the UK, where pnncipal receipts and payments are
denominated in Eures In each country a small proportion of the
sales are made to customers outside those countnies For those
countries within the Euro zone, the level of non-Eure denominated
sales is very small and if material, the Group’s policy is to elminate

currency exposure through forward currency contracts For the UK,
the vast majonty of sales and purchases are denominated in sterling
and any material trading exposures are elminated through forward
currency contracts

Credit nsk

There are no significant concentrations of credit nsk within the
Group The maximum credit nsk exposure relating to financial assets
15 represented by carrying value as at the balance sheet date

Tony Conophy
Finance Director
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Board of Directors

RON SANDLER CHAIRMAN PHILIP HULME
MIKE NORRIS CHIEF EXECUTIVE QFFICER IAN LEWIS
TONY CONOPHY FINANCE DIRECTOR PETER OGDEN

JOHN ORMEROD

CLIFF PREDDY
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Ren Sandler (55)

Chairman

Ron has a degree m engineenng from Cambridge and an MBA from
Stanford University His early career was with the Boston Consulting
Group, and as Chief Executive of Martin Bierbaum Group and Exco
plc He was Chief Executive of Lioyd's of London from 1995 until
1999, and subsequently Chief Operating Officer of NatWest Group
He 1s Charrman of Kyte Group, Oxygen plc and Paternoster, and a
Director of Fortis Group Ron was apponted Charman of
Computacenter in May 2001

Mike Norns (45)

Chief Executive

Mike graduated with a degree in computer science and
rmathematics from East Angha Unnversity in 1983 He joined
Computacenter in 1984 as a salesrman in the City office In 1986 he
was Computacenter’s top national account manager Following
appointments as Regional Manager for London operations in 1988
and General Manager of the Systems Dision in 1982 waith full
national sales and marketing responsibiities, he became Chief
Executive in December 1394 wath responsibility for all day-to-day
actmities and reporting channels across Computacenter

Tony Conophy {49)

Finance Director

Tony has been a member of the Institute of Chartered Management
Accountants since 1982 He qualfied with Semperit (reland) Lid
and then worked for five years at Cape Industries plc He yoined
Computacenter in 1987 as Financal Controller, nsing m 1991 to
General Manager of Finance In 1996 he was appainted Finance
and Commercial Director of Computacenter (UK) Limited with
responsibility for all financial, purchasing and vendor relations
actvities In March 1998 he was apponted Group Finance Director

Phulip Hulme (58)

Philip founded Computacenter with Peter Ogden in 1981 and
worked for the Company on a full-time basis until stepping down as
Executive Chairman in 2001 He s a Director of Dealogic (Holdings)
plc and was previously a Vice President and Director of the Boston
Consulting Group

lan Lews {46}

tan 1s Director of the Unversity Computing Serice at the University
of Cambrnidge Durng his career he has held a number of seror
positions, ncluding First Vice President and Global Chief
Technology Officer of Merrill Lynch'’s Investment Banking and Sales
dmision and Global CTO at Dresdner Kleinwort Wassersten
Investment Banking

Peter Ogden (59}

Peter founded Computacenter with Phiip Hulme n 1981 and was
Charrman of the Company until 1988, when he became a Non-
Executive Director He 1s Chairman of Dealogic (Holdings) plc Prior
to joning Computacenter, he was a Managing Director of Morgan
Stanley and Co

John Ormerod (58)

John s the Senior Independent Director of Misys Pic He s alsoa
Non-Executive Director of Gemalto NV, where he chars the Audit
Committee, and a member of the Audit Committee of HBOS plc
He was previously a member of the Delotte UK Executve
Committee and elected Board

Cuff Preddy (59)

Cliff has worked in the [T industry for most of his professional career,
ncluding many years as an Executive Director of Logica plc He 18
Deputy Charman of Chartens ple, and a Non-Executive Director of
CODA plc
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Corporate governance statement

1 Compliance statement

The Board continues to recognise the mportance of effective
corporate governance in relation to the achievernent of the Group's
obyectves It has devised policies that seek to apply established
best practice in order to achieve and mantain compliance with the
Combined Code on Corporate Governance, as published in July
2003 and reviewed in Novernber 2005 (‘the Code’) The Board
acknowledges its responsibilities under the Code, the principles
and provisions of which it supports This repart details how the
Company has applied those principles and provisions The Board
confirms that, save as detailled below, the Company has complied
with the provisions of the Code throughout the financial year

2 Board of Directors

Structure

The Board currently consists of three Executive Directors Ron
Sandler, Mike Norris and Tony Conophy, and five Non-Executve
Dwectors Philip Hulme, lan Lews, Peter Ogden, John Ormered and
CIiff Preddy Details of the Directors, including ther membership of
Committees, are set out below and therr biographies appear on
pages 24 and 25 lan Lews, John Ormerod and Chiff Preddy are
considered by the Board to be independent under the provisions of
the Code and Clff Preddy s the Senior Independent Director Nick
Cosh served as the Senior Independent Director until his resignation
from the Board on 28 June 2006

The Directors are aware that during the year under review, the
structure of the Board did not comply with prowision A 3 2 of the
Code, which requires at least half the Board, excluding the
Charrman, to consist of Independent Non-Executive Directors

The Board and Nominations Committee have considered this
matter carefully over the period and have sought to achieve a
balance between the desrability of achieving compliance with this
provision of the Code, and the requirement for the Board to function
effectively and with continuty This has led to the net addition of one
independant Non-Executive Director duning the year Although the
Company s still not compliant with the Code given the present size
and composition of the Board, there are ne plans to appoint any
further Directors at the present time

Becision making

The rotes of Charman and Chief Executive are spiit and there s

a clear dwvision of responsibiliies between the two In brief, the
Charman is responsible for the effective operation of the Board
and for overseang the strategic focus and performance of the
senior management The Chief Executive is responsible for the day-
to-day management of the Group’s activities There 1s no individual
who has unfettered powers of decision and no one indmdual or
group of Individuals who dominats the Board’s decision making

processes The Board believes that it oversees the Group effectively
and i1s proactive In its approach The Board 1s led by the Charman,
who I1s responstble for setting the agenda and ensunng its efficency

The Gharman facilitates the contribution of all Directors and 1s
responsible for ensuring constructive relations exist between them
The Board sets the strategic ams for ihe Group and ensures that
the necessary financial and human resources are in place to
achieve these cbjectives Itis also responsible for reviewing the
performance of management in order to ensure that they are
mesting pre-agreed objectives

There I1s a documnented schedule of matters that are reserved for
the Board and these matters include the approval of meyor capital
expenditure and the agreement of strategies and budgets This
schedule was comprehensively reviewed by the Board during 2006
All of the Directors have access to the Company Secretary, Stephen
Benade, who 1s responsible for ensuring that all Beard procedures
are followed, applicable rules and regulations are complied with and
the Board I1s updated on all governance matters The Charman
ensures that new Directors receive a talored induction and that all
Directors are properly briefed on 1ssues considered at Board
meetings to enable them to effectively discharge ther duties

All Directors receve relevant information in a timely manner

This includes detaided briefings on all matters where the Board

15 required to make a deciston or to give its approval and regular
reports on issues such as the trading performance and outlook

In addition, senior members of the management team are routinely
nvited to attend Board meetings, thereby ensuring Directors
continually update ther knowledge of, and familianty wath, the
business of the Group All of the Directors are entitled to obtain
independent professional advice, at the Company’s expense,
where they believe 1t 1Is iImportant to the furtherance of ther duties
The Company arranges Insurance caover In respect of legal action
agamst the Directors and in defined permissible instances, the
Company 1s able to Indemnify Directors agamnst clams brought

The Drrectors set appropriate values and standards, ensuring that
obligations to shareholders and others are understood and met
and that a satisfactory dialogue with sharehclders 1s maintaned
A framework of prudent and effective controls exsts, to ensure
that nsks are properly identfied, assessed and managed

All Directors ara subject to election at the first Annual General
Meeting after appointment and are required to retire by rotation,
every three years Those Non-Executive Directers who have
served for more than nine years, are cbiiged to offer themselves
for re-election annually

Rermuneraton Nomnatons
Name PLC Board independent Audit Comemitiee Commttee Commitiee
Ron Sandler Executrve Charman No No No Charman
Mike Noms Executive No No No No
Tony Conophy Executve No No No No
Nick Cash! Non-Executve until 28 06 06 Yes Charrman Yes Yes
Philip Hulme Non-Executive No No No No
lan Lewrs? Non-Executve Yes Yes Yes Yes
Peter Ogden Non-Executve No No No No
John OrmerocP Non-Executve Yes Chagrman Yes Yes
Cliff Preddy Senior Independent Director Yes Yes Charman Yes
Stephen Benadé Secretary n/a Secretary Secretary Secretary

Nk Cosh resigead from the Board on 28 June 2006
*1an Lewts was appointed ta the Board on 15 June 2006
2 John Ormerod was appainted to the Board on 31 October 2006
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The Board has established a formal process, which 1s led by the
Charrman, for the evaluation of the performance of the Board, its
Committees and mndmdual Directors Indmdual interviews are
conducted by the Charman with each Director to explore matters
of Board effectveness  The information obtained forms the basis of
arepert for discussion by the Board which decides, as a whole,

on the actions to be taken n respect of those areas identified as
requinng improverment  The review of the performance of the
Chairman is undertaken annually by the Remuneration Committee

Pnncipal Board Committees

The Board has delegated certain duties to three principal
Committees, the main responsibiities and composition of
which are as follows

Audit Committee

Members John Qrmerod {Chairman), lan Lewis and

Chf Preddy

For the meetings of the Committee dunng 2006, the Company was
not compliant with provision C 31, which states that there should be
at least three independent members of the Committea This non-
compliance was due to the resignations of Ghislain Lescuyer at the
end of 2005 and Nick Cosh Due to the resignation of the Audit
Committee Charman, Nick Cosh on 28 June 2006, no separate
Audit Committee meetings were held in the latter half of the year
The business of the Committee was dealt with by the Board The
Committee membership has returned to compliancs, with the
appontments of fan Lews on 15 June 2006 and John Ormerod

as Audit Committee Charrman on 31 October 2008, and meetings
separate from the Board will convene in 2007 Dunng 20086, the
Committee met twice and attendance at those meetings 1s set out
on page 28 The Board Chairman, Group Finance Director, Group
Intemal Audit Manager, Group Risk Manager and the external
audtor are routinely invited to and attend the majonty of meetings
Perodically, the Committee also meets privately with exiernat
auditors and the Group Internal Audit Manager

The Committee assists the Board in fulfiling its duties by reviewing
a wide range of matters including the Group's annual and intenm
financial statements and accormparying reports to shareholders,
the prelminary announcement of results and all other
announcements regarding financial performance In addition, it
reviews on behalf of the Board the scope, cost effectiveness and
result of external and internal audit and the external auditor's
independence and objectmty The Commitee establishes and
monitors the Group's policy i relation to non-audit services
provided by the external auditor, with a view to ensuning objectivity,
independence and cost effectveness The Committee monitors the
integrity of internal financial conirols and nsk management systems,
principally on the basis of reports on sigrificant operational nsks
and controls, presented by the Internal Audit Department and the
Risk and Insurance Department In addition, the Committee reviews
practices for answening staft concerns over improprieties and
should these anse, ensures that procedures are in place for
appropriate nvestigation and follow-up

Nominations Committee

Members Ron Sandler (Chairman), ian Lewts, John Ormerod
and Chff Preddy

The Committee Chairman i1s Ron Sandler, the Executve Charman,
and the other members are ndependent Non-Executve Directors
The Commitiee convened three times during 2006 Nick Cosh
resigned from the Cornmittee on 28 June 2006 In accordance with
the prowvisions of the Code, the majonity of the Committee 1s made
up of ndependent Non-Executive Directors

The Committee’s responsibilities include leading the process for
Board appointments, reviewing the Board composition, skilfs,
knowledge and expenence, and nominating candidates for both
Executve and Non-Executive Drectorships on the basis of merit
and objectve criteria It also ensures that the procedures for the
appontment of new Directors are formal, ngorous and transparent
and that there i1s an orderly succassion for appointments to the
Beard and senior management

When making a recommendation for the appointment of a Director,
the Committee will evaluate the existing balance of skills, knowledge
and experience on the Board and produce a description of the role
and capabilites required for such an appointment The Commitiee
typically uses the services of external advisers to help identfy
canddates from a wide range of backgrounds who will then be
considered on ment aganst objective cntena

Remuneration Committee

Members Cliff Preddy (Chairman), tan Lewis and

John Ormerod

All of the members of this Committee are independent Non-
Executive Directors Compltance with provision B 21 of the Code
was not achieved for the entire year, due to the resignations of
Ghislain Lescuyer at the end of 2005 and Nick Cosh in 2006
However, with the Non-Executve appointments in 20086, the
Committee i once agan compliant with the Code Philp Hulme
and Peter Ogden generally attend the Committee meetings by
rvitation Ron Sandler attends meetings but absents himself when
his own remuneration is considered

The Committee determines the Group’s general policy on executive
remuneration, the specific packages for the Executve Directors and
the level and structure of remuneration for senuor employees in ine
with best practice The Committes also monitors and reviews the
terms and conditions of the Executive Directors’ sernce
agreements, determines the grant of shares or options to them and
to senior employees, and appoints any consuftants used in
assessing ther remuneration The Committee’s terms of reference
are regularly reviewed by the Board to ensure that its activities
comply fully with the provisions of the Code and in particular that
there is a formal and transparent procedure for developing policy
on executive remuneration and for fixing the remuneration
packages of ndvidual Directors

Throughout 2006 the terms of reference for all Committees were
avallable from the Company Secretary on request and were posted
on the Company's website
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Corporate governance statement continued

The attendance of the Drectors at scheduled Board and Cornmuttee meetings held during 2006 was as follows

Board Audit Remuneration Nominations
Drrector Meetngs Committee Committee Committee
tNumber of scheduled meetings held 8 2 2 3
Executive
Ron Sandler, Charman 8 n/a na 3
Mike Noms, Chief Executve 8 na nva na
Tony Conophy, Finance Director 8 na n/a na
Non-Executive,
iNick Cosh! 3 2 2 2
Philip Huime 7 n/a n/a na
lan Lewns? 5 - - 1
Peter Ogden 5 na na n/a
John Ormerod® 2 - - -
Ciff Preddy, Senicr Independent Director 8 2 2 3

1 Nick Cosh resigned from the Board on 28 June 2006
2|an Lews was appented 10 the Board on 15 June 2006
*John Ormercd was appontsd to the Board on 31 October 2006

From time to time, additional meetings are required which may not
necessanly demand attendance by all Drectors, depending on the
nature of the business to be discussed During the year, two such
meetings were required to conclude matters previously considered
by the Board Ron Sandler, Mike Norris, Tony Conophy, Philip
Hutme, lan Lews, John Ormerod and Cliff Preddy attended both
meetings and Peter Ogden was present at one

It 15 inewvitable that there will be occasions when circumstances
anse 1o prevent Directors from attending meetings In such
creumnstances, the usual practice 1s for the absent Director to
review the Board papers and to raise any considlerabons on
specific 1ssues with the Chairman

In addition to the formal Board and Committee meetings, the
Charman meets with the Non-Executive Directors without the
other Executive Directors being present, at least once a year
The Non-Executives also meet without the Chairman to
appraise his performance

3 Directors’ remuneration
The principles and detads of Drectors’ remunerabion are contained
in the Remuneration Report on pages 30 to 33

4 Relations with shareholders

The Executive Directors have reqular contact with institutional
shareholders (except during close penods) and dialogue with
shareholders 1s generally accorded a high prionty The Company
has a programme of meetings with its major insttutional
shareholders and presents to analysts at least twice a year,
following the announcement of its interim and final results The
Charman arranges for the Drectors to receve regular reports on
shareholders’ views to ensure the Board develops an understanding
of matters of concern to the major shareholders Clff Preddy, as
Senior Independent Non-Executive Director, 15 avatlable to answer
any shareholder concems that are unable to be resolved through
regutar channels In addition to mandatory mformation, a full and
balanced explanation of the business of all general meetings s sent
to shareholders The Board welcomes the attendance of indwidual
shareholders at general meeungs and the opportunity to

communicate with investors and address ther questons
Resolutions at the Company's general meetings have been
passed on a show of hands and proxies for and against each
resolution {together with any abstentions) are announced at
such meetings and noted n the minutes

5 Internal controls

The Board has overall responsibility for maintaning and reviewing
the Group’s systems of internal control, ensuring that these are
prudent and robust, and enabling nsks to be properly assessed and
managed Systems are designed to manage rather than elimnate
the nisk of fallure to achieve business objectives and can provide
only reasonable and not absolute assurance aganst matenal
misstatement or loss

The Board conducts an annual review of the effectiveness of the
system of internal control ncluding financial, operational and
compliance controls and nsk management systems Where
matenal weaknesses have been entified safeguards are
implemented and monitored

All systems of internal control are designed to continuously identify,
evaluate and manage significant risks faced bty the Group The key
elements of the Group's controls are as follows

Responsibilities and authority structure

The Board has overall responsibility for making significant strategic
decisions and there 1s a schedule of specific matters reserved for
the Board The Executive Drectors, togsther wath two senior
managers, constituta the Group Executve Committee, which meets
on aregular basis to discuss day-to-day operational matiers
Separate Executive Committees have been established for each

of the Group's operations in the UK, France and Germany A flat
reporting structure s maintained across the Group with clearly
defined responsibidities for operational and financial management
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Contro! environment

The Group aperates authornsation and approval processes that

are an integral part of its operations Access controls exst where
processes have been autormated to ensure the secunty of data
Management information systems have been developed to identify
risks and to enable assessment of the effectiveness of the system of
nternal controt Accountability is reinforced, and the further scrutiny
of costs and revenues encouraged, by the linking of staff incentives
to customer satisfaction and profitability

Planning and reporting processes

A three-year strategic plan 1s prepared or updated annually and
reviewed by the Board A comprehensive budgetary process Is
completed annually and is subject to the approval of the Board
Performance s monitored through a ngorous and detailed financial
and management reporting system, by which monthly results are
compared to budgets and the previous year The results and
explanations for vanances are regularly and routinely reported

to the Board Appropriate action 1S taken where vanances arise

Risk management

Specialists within the Risk and Insurance Department morutor
developments and ensure compliance with legislatve and
regulatery requirements, including the Tumbull Guidelines A
comprehensive risk management programme 18 moritored and
developed by the Risk Committee, the members of which inctude
key operational managers Through a programme of assessment,
appropriate measures and systems of control are mantained
Detaled contingency plans are in place for all key sites and these
are regularly tested

Capital expenditure and nvestments

Procedures exist and authority levels are docurmented to ensure
that capital expenditure 1s property appraised and authonsed
Cases for all nvestment projects are reviewed and approved at
dvisional level Major mvestment projects are subject to approval
by the Board

Centralised treasury function

All cash payments and receipts are managed by centralised finance
functions within each of the operating companies Weekly reporting
of cash balances to the Group Fnance Department ensures the
postition of the Group as a whole, i1 properly controlled

Quality and integnty of staff

The suitability of staff 15 determined through rnigorous
recruitment procedures Management continuously monitors
traming requiremenis and annual appraisal procedures are
In place to ensure that required standards are mantained
Resource requirements ars identified by managers and
reviewed by the relevant national Executive Committee

Internal audit

The Group has an internal audit function fed by the Group Internal
Audit Manager who reports directly to the Chairman of the Audit
Committee

The Board, acting through the Audit Committes, has directed the
work of Internal Audit towards those areas of the business that are
considered to be of the highest nsk The Committee approves a
roling audit programme ensurng that all significant areas of the
business are ndependently reviewed within a three-year period
The programme and the findings of the reviews are continually
assessed to ensure they take account of the latest information
and, in particular, the results of the annual review of nternal
control The effectiveness of the Internal Audit Department
and the Group’s nisk management programme are reviewad
nually by the Audit Committes

NS

A Sandler
Charman
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Directors' remuneration report

Remuneration Committee and advisors
The Remuneration Committee receved external advice from
Linklaters

Other Directors and employees of the Group who provided matenal
advice or services to the Committee during the year were

Ron Sandler Charman

Stephen Benadé Group Compary Secretary
Tim Way Group HR Director

Peter Ogden Non-Executive Director
Philp Hulme Non-Executve Director

The Committee takes nto account comparatve practice in the
European technology sector, FTSE 250 comparnies and FTSE
small caps

Remuneration policy

The Committee makes recommendations and determines
remuneration policy on the Board's behalf No Director 1s involved
in deciding his own remuneration The Executive Directors
determine the fees for Non-Executive Directors that reflect the
time commitment and responsibilities of therr roles, and the
Committee 1s responsible for determining the appropnate policy
for rewarding the Group’s Executive Directors and senior
management

In implementing its policy, the Committee has gven full
consideration to the Principles of the Combined Code with regard
to Executve Director remuneration, and 1s satisfied that it has
complied with best practice provisions n this matter In particular,
the following objectives have been addressed

= to attract, retain and motivate Executve Directors with the
qualities required to run the Group successfully,

¢ to reward Executive Directors through remuneration
arrangements that are competitve biut not excessve,

¢ {o provide Executve Directors with an incentve for the
development and performance of the Group in the best
interest of shareholders, and

« to ensure that a significant proportion of Executive Directors’
remuneration 1§ structured such that rewards are inked to
corporate and indwvidual performance

The policy is designed to ensure that a significant proportion

of the total remuneration 1s dependent upon personal and

Group performance and aligns the interests of executives

and shareholders This 1s achieved through a combination of

fixed and vanable payments, benefits, share option schemes and the
Performance Share Plan (PSP} The latter two total remuneration
elements are referred to collectvely as Equity schemes

Basic salary and benefits

In seeking to ensure that the basic salary and benefits for each
Executive Drector are appropriate and competitive, relevant
external market data, as well as pay and conditions in the Group
generally, are taken into consideration The Charman makes
recommendations to the Cornmuittee in respect of the two other
Executive Directors, based upon this information, together with an
assessment of ther ndvidual performance aganst specific financal
and non-financial goals, and the performance of the Group asa
whole Chff Preddy, as Committee Chairman, 1s responsible for an
equwalent process In respect of Ron Sandler’s remuneration

Performance-related bonus scheme

Mike Norns and Tony Conophy participate in annual performance-
related bonus schemes 40% of the award 15 inked to the financial
performance of the Group aganst a pre-agreed target, with the
balance related to the achievement of specific personal objectives
agreed with each of them for the year by the Chairman, and approved
by the Committee Performance conditions are relevant, challenging
and designed 1o enhance shareholder valug For 2006, the maximurn
levels of bonus were 75% of base salary and Mike Noims earned
£144,900 {2005 £100,125) and Tony Conophy £97,875 (2005
£100,800) Following a review by the Remuneration Committee, the
maximum levels of bonuses for 2007 will be 75% of base salary

Equity schemes

Performance Share Plan

This plan now operates as the Company's man long-term incentive
scheme for senior employees The Executwve Directors receved
rewards under this plan durnng 2006 and these awards were
subject to performance critena as detaled below

The 2006 PSP performance target was based on the Group's
annual adusted sarming per share (EPS") growth n relation to the
retal price index (RP!') and measured over a thres year period No
shares subject to awards will vest f cumulative annual growth is
less than RPI plus 3% One quarter of the shares will vest at RPI
plus 3% Awards will vest in fullif the Group's cumulative annual
growth s at or above RPI plus 75% [f the Group's EPS growth over
the penod s between 3% and 7 5% above RP, awards will vest on
a straght Iine basis There will be no retesting of the performance
target Awards under the PSP during 2007 will be subject to the
same performance criterna

EPS has been chosen as a performance measure that 15 a widely
used and transparent yardstick EPS 1s calculated on a pre-
exceptional, diuted basis

The varous elements of Executive Directors' remuneration are shown below

Performance based Equity schemes
Element; Fosd basc salary Bonus PSP Shara options
Maxarmurm Award 75% of base salary 100% of base salary 125% of base salary
Purpose Reflects competitve salary Rewards the delvery of improved motwvation for Linked to the achievement
levels and takes account of  Group operabional performance senior executves to of significant and
personal contribubon and and achievement of personal contribute 1o sustamed snprovements
performance objectves growth and profitabilty inthe Group's
and better afign the financial performance
Group's ncentve and to the creation
arrangernents wih of value through
shareholders’ interests rereased share price
Performance indmadual Specific ndwdual EPS growth EPS growth
Standard contrbution targets approved by relatve to RPI relatve to RP
the Remuneration
Cormmittee each vear

Note Tha Chairman s nebgbie for a bonus award
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The maxarnum value of shares that can be awarded under the plan
to an employee in a financial year 1s 1x base salary This limit can be
exceeded in exceptional crcumstances up to an absolute maximum
of 2x base salary Awards made to the Executive Directors will be n
the range of 0 75 to 1x base salary

Share options

The Executive Directors have histonically been awarded execuive
share options under the Company's share option schemes As the
PSP 1s the man long-term incentive scheme, no such ophions were
granted to the Executive Directors in 2008, although some grants
were made to senmior employees Since 1998, these awards have
ordinarily been subject to certan performance condittons that are
challenging and designed to produce significant and sustained
improvements In the Group's underlying financial performance The
detalls of the various performance condtions relating to grants are
set out in the table of Directors’ interests in share options on page
33 Should the conditions not be met, options will lapse

The Computacenter Employee Share Option Scherme 1398 1s due
to expire earty next year The Remuneration Committee considered
the current reward structure and 1s intending to introduce a renewed
executive share option scheme, subject to shareholder approval

at the 2007 AGM The PSP will remain the preferred annual long-
term ncentive scheme, but the Remuneration Committee wishes

to retain the flextalty to grant employees options n appropnate
crrcumstances, such as in countries where associated tax
advantages apply

Its ntended that the performance conditions will be ahigned

to the recently approved PSP and will vest on a straight ine
basis The performance conditions are based on EPS since the
Remuneration Comrmittee believes that there are nsutficient
comparable organisations to create a meaningful comparator
group, for the purpose of assessing performance conditions
based on total shareholder return

The proposed option scheme constitutes a renewal of the previous
scheme operated by the Company The changes that have been
made are designed to further align the scheme with ABI guidelines
The masamum number of options that can be awarded under the
scheme will remain 3x base salary, although this can be exceeded
in exceptional crcumstances Should grants be made to Executve
Dwrectors, a maxmurn of 1 25x base salary will rerman the
Company guidetne

Diwrectors’ Contracts

Further grants of share options will be made in approprate
circumstances only, since the approved PSP will continue
to be the man long-term incentive scheme for senior employees

Penston

Executive Drrectors are entitted to particpate n the Computacenter
Pension Scherne, a defined contribution salary sacrifice scheme
available to all employees under which a maarnum annual
Company contribution of £3,710 per employee 1s payable The
maximum Company contribution was reviewed dunng 2006 It was
decided that this maximurn contribution should be increased to
£5,400 per employee from January 2007 The scheme also allows
employees to make additional salary sacrifices, which the Company
may contribute to the scheme on thew behalf The amounts of such
additional salary sacrifices are shown as Company contributions in
excess of the £3,710 imit I the table of Directors’ remuneration on
page 32 Mike Norns and Tony Conophy participate in the scheme

Directors’ contracts

All Executive Directors have a roling 12 month service contract with
the Company, which s subject to 12 months’ notice by either the
Company or the Director

No contractual arrangements are in place that guarantee additional
payments upon termination of employment by the Company Al
service contracts provide for summary termination in the event of
gross misconduct

The Non-Executive Directors do not have service contracts with the
Company They each operate under a letter of appointment that
sets out ther terms, duties and responsibilities Non-Executive
Directors are appointed for an ntial term which runs to the
conclusion of the third Annual General Meeting following ther
appontment and may be renewed at that pont for a further
three-year term

All Directors must offer themselves for re-glection by shareholders
in general meeting at least every three years, in accordance with
the Company's Articles of Association

Contract/fletter of

appontment e Natice penod
Dxrector start date Expuy date 83 at 9 March 2007 {months)
Executive:
Ron Sandler 16/03/2001 n/a? see below? 12
Mike Noms 23/04/1998 na none spectied 12
Tony Conophy 230441998 n/a none specified 12
Non-Executive.
Nick Cosh?® 28/0472005 n/a na n/a
Philip Hulme 05/05/2006 2008 AGM 26 3
lan Lewrs 15/06/2006 2009 AGM 26 3
Peter Ogden 05/05/2006 2009 AGM 26 3
John Ormerod IINQ2006 2009 AGM 26 3
Ciiff Preddy 28/04/2005 2008 AGM 14 12

' Caloulated as at 9 March 2007 and assumng that future ASMS will be held in May each year and assumes re electon where required 0 retr at earier AGMs in eccordance with the

Cornpary’s Articles of Association.

' Ron Sandler 8 service contract automatcaly terminates on his 65th xrthday on 5 March 217

¥ Nick Cosh ressgned from the Board on 28 June 2008
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Directors’ remuneration report continued

Performance graph Computacenter's shares are quoted on the London Stock

The performance of the Group over the last five financial years Exchange and the Committee has deemed the FTSE Software and !
in relation to other relevant UK-quoted shares 1s shown in the Computer Services share index as the comparator against which

graph below 10 assess Total Shareholder Return performance

Total Shareholder Return performance
Computacenter versus FTSE Software and Computer Services sector
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Audited information
The Directors’ remuneration and Dwectors’ interests in share options tables below, and their associated notes, are subject to audit

Diwrectors' remuneration

Basic salary Performance Pension Total Total
andfess  related bonuses contnbutons Other' 2006 2005
£ £ £ £ £ £
Exscutive Directors
Ron Sandler 277,949 - - - 277,949 267910
Mike Noms 459,925 144,900 3,703 - 608,528 548,425
Tony Conophy 301,086 97875 3,709 - 402,670 394,227
Non-Executive Directors |
Nick Cesh 22,750¢ - - 15,000 37,750 42,500 ‘
Philip Hulme 33,000 - - - 33,000 30,000
lan Lews 17,981 - - - 17,981 -
Ghislain Lescuyer - - -~ - - 22,500
Peter Ogden 33,000 - - - 33,000 30,000
John Ormerod 7,758 - - - 7,758 -
Cliff Preddy 38,0009 - - 8,750 46,750 35,000
1,191,449 242775 7412 23,750 1,485,386 1,370,562

' Nick Cosh and Chiff Preddy recened addiional payments dunng 2006 for the additonal work undertaken with respect to the proposed management buy-out

7 Pror 10 s resignation, Nick Cosh recenved an annual fee of £12 S00 for hs serwces as Chasman of the Audit Commitiee Since tks appointment John Ormenod receves an annuzl fea of
£12 500 for hus sarvices as Charmman of the Audit Committee

3 Ci#f Preddy recenes an annual fee of £5 000 for his sernces a3 Chaurnan of the Remuneration Comnytise
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Interests in share options and PSPs

Exercise Exgrcise At 1January Granted dunng Exercrsed At 31 December

Dwecior Scheme typa price (0} dates  Nots 2006 theyear cduingtheyear Lapsed 2006
Ron Sandler Optons  33350p _ 20/03/2004 — 19002011 (1)) 150,000 - - - 150,000
33350p  20/03/2005 - 19/06/2011 (1} 150,000 - - - 150,000

33350p  20/03/2006 - 19032011 (i} 200,000 - - - 200,000

32200p  10/04/2005 - 090472012 6) 91,226 - - - 91,226

26650p  21/03/2006 - 20/03/2013 &) 117,260 - - - 117,260

266 50p  21/06/2007 - 20/03/2013 8 200,000 - - - 200,000

42400p  02/04/2007 - 01/04/2014 {9) 76,650 - - - 76,650

Total 985,136 - - - 985,136
PSP - 01/04/2009 (10} - 109,351 - - 109,351

Total - 109,351 - - 109,351
Mike Noms Optong  168000p 31/07/2000 - 30/07/2007 vy 250,000 - 250,000 - -
33350p 20/03/2004 - 19032011 (1.4) 8,995 - - 8995 -

333580p  20/03/2004 - 190372011 (5] 48,726 - — 48,726 -

32200p  10/04/2005 - 02/04/2012 (=] 122,670 - - - 122,670

26650p  21/03/2006 - 2003/2013 8 194,652 - - - 194,652

39500p  01/12/2008 - 31052009 (3} 4,012 - - - 4,012

42400p  02/04/2007 — 01/04/2014 9 126,768 - - - 126,768

Total 755,823 - 250000 57721 448,102
PSP - 01/04/2009 (10} - 181,500 - - 181,500

Total - 181,500 - - 181,500
Tory Conopty Options  33350p  20/03/2004 - 19/03/2011 ) 35,982 - - 35982 -
32200p 10/04/2005-0904/2012  (1,7) 9,316 - - — 9,316

32200p  10/04/2005 - 0904/2012 6 66,770 - - - 66,770

26650p  21/03/2006 - 20103/2013 8 121,951 — - - 121,851

39500p  01/12/2006 - 31/05/2007 3 2,335 - - - 2,335

42400p  02/04/2007 - 01/04/2014 9 79,599 - - - 79,599

Total 315,953 - - - 279,971
PSP = 0104/2008  (10) - 117.861 - - 117,861

Total - 117.861 - - 117,861

The Company's Non-Executive Drrectors are not pernitted to participate in any of the Company’s Employee Share Schemes and none of
the Non-Executive Directors hold any outstanding share options over Computacenter ordinary shares

Notas
1 Issued under the temms of the Computacentar Empioyee Share Opbon Scheme

2 mmmmmmmmamm§W Opbon

3 Issuad under the temns of the Computacenter Sharesave Pus mamwawmummma

4 Exacrsabla on the condibon that the averaga annual growth Gmup's diuted samings per share comparad 10 the basa year of 2000 15 at least acual 1o the RPY
plus 5% n any of the three huorﬁveyaapeﬂoasmmammn'ngm 2004 and 2005 respectively

5 Issued under the tenms of the Computacenter Performance Related Shars Option Scherme 1988 The options become exercisable if the verage cormpound n the Computacenter Group s
diuted earmngs per share mwmmpmmmoo Batleas( mﬁﬁm%nwdﬂ’lﬂﬂm maﬁmmpedodsl.pbam 2003 2004 o 2005 respactvely

€ Issued under the tenms of the Computacenter The options become exercisabla if the growth n the Company's
mwm(wammmmsmnmmedmmmwmmmmzw 15.at least equalto the gpﬁns%nmdmmeebuorﬁveyaar
mmmmm 2005 or 2008 4

7 ammeomdmmma:mwmwmgMnmcmmsmwm(mamQMnmampmm diuted bass} compared to the base
rsaof2001 15 at laast equal 10 the RPY phes 5% 0 any of the three four of five year mwwmnmm 20050r2006

8  Issuad under the terms of the Computacenter Performance Retated Share Opton 1998 The options become exercisabla Wﬁ compound growth in tha Company's

eamings per share [on a post-yvestment in the Biommns jort venture: cidutad Dass} compared 10 the base year of 2002 lsatleastaqudto plus 5% n any of the three Tour or five year

pmodsuot and nciuing 2005 2006 or 2007 raspectively
9 Issuad under the terms of the Compuatacenter Parformance Retated Share Option Scheme 1898 The options become axarcesabla d Ma;ﬁ compound growth in the Company's
wm[mammnmmmmn,dhmdbm)mmmmmdmsallaasteqﬂlo plus 5% n any of the three four Or five year

pmods to and ncluding 2006 2007 or 2008 respactvely

10 mmmmdmmmmp’mm mmdmmumum%m growthin the Group s per share 15 & least
equd o R plus 3% over the thrde consacuve financal years % an 31 December comparad to the bese year of 2005 Awards wil vest in il if the Group's
cumuiative annual growth s & or abova RP phus 7.5% lheGru.ps penod 13 betwean 3% and 7 5% above RP, awards will vest on a Sraght ind bass,

Gains made on the exercise of ophons during the year by Directors were

Date of Last Data of Exerasa Total exercese Market value Ganon
exercse EXBITISe No. of shares pnce (o) morees (1) at exercse () exprse

Director
Mike Noms 05/05/2006  30/07/2007 250,000 16000 400,000 264 00 260,000

The market price of the ordinary shares at 29 December 2006 was 268 50p The highest price during the year was 292 50p and the lowest

W

SJ Benadé
Secretary
12 March 2007
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Directors' report

The Drectors present ther report and the audited accounts
of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2006

Principal activities

The Company is a holding company The principal activities
of the Group, of which 1t is the parent, are the supply,
implementation, support and management of information
technology systems

Business Review

A description of the Group’s actmties and certan key performance
indicators are contained within pages 2 to 5 The development

of the Group's business, together with an indication of future
developments, are iIncluded in the Charman's Statement on pages
6to 7, the Cheef Executive's Review on pages 8 to 13 and the
Finance Director's Review on pages 20 to 23 Detalls of some

of the principal nsks that the Group currently faces are detailed

on page 14

Results and dwvidends

The Group's actmities resulted in a pre-exceptional profit before
tax of £38 0 milion {2005 £35 7 millory The Group profit for the
year avallable to shareholders amounted to £18 9 milkon (2005
£20 4 milion)

The Directors recommend a final dvidend for the year of £7 9 millon
{2005 £94 mihon) Dvidends are recognised in the accounts in the

Directors’ interests in shares

year in which they are paid, or in the case of a final dvidend, when
approved by the shareholders As such, the amount recogrused n
the 2006 accounts, as described in note 10, 1s made up of last
year's final dmdend and the intenm dvidend of this year

The final ordinary dndend for 2006 if approved, will be paid
on 31 May 2007 to those shareholders on the register as at
4 May 2007 The Company paid an intenm dmdend of

£3 9 milion on 20 October 2006

Directors

The Directors who served dunng the year ended 31 December
2006 are detalled below Bref biographical details of the Directors
at the date of this report are given on pages 24 to 25

Mike Norns and Ciiff Preddy will retire by rotation at the forthcoming
Annual General Meeting and, being elgble, will offer themselves

for re-election Philip Hulme and Peter Ogden, having served as
Dwectors for more than nine years, will retire and offer themselves
for re-election at the Annual General Meeting lan Lews and John
Ormerod, having been appointed snce the last Annual General
Meeting, will also retre and offer themselves for election

Directors Indemnities

The Company has made qualifying third party ndemnity provisions
for the benefit of its Directors duning the year and these remain in
force at the date of this report

The nterests of the Dwrectors n the share capital of the Comparny at the beginning and end of the vear are set out below

A1 31 Docomber 2006 At 1 January 2006

or g5 at date of appontment
Number of Number of Number ¢i Numnber of
ordinary shares  ordinary shares ordinary shares ordinary shares
Beneficial Non-beneficial Benefical Non-beneficil
Executive Directors
Ron Sandler 62,500* - 75,000 -
Mike Norns 1,059,386* - 1,271,265 -
Tory Conophy 1,468,962* - 1,762,758 -
Non-Executive Directors
Mick Cosh? - - 5000 -
Phifip Hutme 20,814,412 8,143,921* 24,977,295 Q772707
lan Lewrs? 5,000 - — _
Peter Ogden 35,335,636 979,166 42402764 1,175,000
John Omerod? 5,000 - - -
Ciff Preddy 4,166* - 5,000 -

The decraased sharehokling shown from 1 January 2006, is a resutt of the share capital congolidation that was undertaken on 3 July 2008

1 Nick Cosh resigned from the Board on 28 June 2008
?lan Lewia was appointed o the Board on 15 June 206
3 John Ormierod was appoaitad 0 the Board on 31 October 2006

As at 9 March 2007 there have been no changes in the mnterests of the Directors n the shares of Computacenter since 31 December 2006

Major Interests In shares

With the exception of the Directors’ interests set out above, as at
9 March 2007, no persons have notified the Company that they
hold a substantial interest {in excess of 3% as defined in the
Companies Act 1985) n the existing ssued ordinary share
capital of the Company

Authonty to purchase own shares

At the 2006 Annual General Meeting and the 2006 Extraordinary
General Meeting a resolution was passed gving the Company
authonty to purchase up to 10% of its ordinary shares by market
purchase No such purchases were macde dunng the year

A resolution to renew the authority s to be put to the 2007
Annual General Meeting

Creditors payment policy

The Group does not hold any trade creditor balances However, it 1s
the policy of the Group that each of the businesses should agree
appropriate terms and conditions with suppliers (rangng from
standard written terms to ndmwdually negotiated contracts) and that
payment should be in accordance with those terms and conditions,
provided that the supplier has also complted with them
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Financial instruments

The Group's financial nsk management objectves and policies are
discussed in the Finance Director’s Review on pages 20 to 23 and
in note 23 to the accounts

Employee share schemes

The Company operates executve share option schemes and a
performance-related option scheme for the benefit of employees
Duning the year, 2,818,600 options over ordinary shares of 6p were
granted under the executive share option schemes (2005 nil} At the
year end options remained outstandng under these schemes in
respect of a total of 7,272,724 ordinary shares of 6p each (2005
7,881,153 ordinary shares) During the year, options over 629,200
shares were exercised and options over 2,798,829 shares lapsed

The Company also operates a Performance Share Plan (PSP’) to
Incentivise employees Duning the year 1,571,604 ordinary shares
of 6p were awarded under the PSP (2005 nil) At the year end
1,553,938 shares remaned outstanding, under this scheme and
37,666 awards had lapsed

In addition, the Company continues to operate a Sharesave scheme for
the benefit of employees At the year end, 2,563,669 (2005 3,309,941)
options granted under the Sharesave scheme remamned outstanding

During the year, the Company has remaned within its headroom
hmits for the issue of new shares for employee share plans as
required In the rules of the plans, specifically the 5% in 10 years kmit
for discretionary plans and the 10% in 10 years for all share plans

Corporate social responsibility

The Board recognises that acting in a socially responsible way
benefits the community, our customers, shareholders, the
environment and employees alike A wide vanety of intiatives and
measures are underway to ensure the Group continues to develop
in a socially responsible way

Health, safety and environment

It remains the policy of the Group that each business mantains

the high standards necessary to safeguard the health and safety

of ts employees, customers, contractors and the publkc This
commitment 15 formally contamed in the Health and Safety Pohcy
Statement, which is avalable from the Company’s website at

www computacenter com/corporate-responsibility or upon request
The Group's Health, Safety and Environment (HSE) Department
monitors and reviews all procedures and policies, utiising the
advice of external consultants, where necessary, In order to ensure
the management systerns comply with current legal requirements
The health, safety and environment management systems are
registered with UVDSB and Venfy with annual audits conducted to
ensure conformance The environment management system (EMS)
additionally remains 1SQ 140012004 certified with the BSI
conducting bi-annual audits at all key locations

Computacenter enhanced ts commitment to the ernaronment by
{aunching a ‘Green IT Advisory Service’ in January 2007 This service
provides vancus nnovatve offerings including an energy efficiency
audit of a company’s current IT environment, configuration senvices
to achieve minimum energy consumption and advice on the
environmental Iifecycle mplications of a typical desktop system In
addition, under this service Computacenter wilt offer ‘carbon neutral
delvery, and offer services from its [T re-marketing and disposal
subskliary company RDC Both Computacenter and RDC have
committed to offset carbon emissions generated by ther operations
for any PC purchased through the Green [T Advisory Service

Employee involvement

Computacenter remains committed to mvoiving all employees in
matters which affect their work and workng environment, prmanly
through team bnefings where managers are tasked with ensuring that
information sharing, discussion and feedback happen on a regular
basis as part of ther core responsibiities as leaders Employee
Consultative Forums exist m each country to consult staff on major
issues affecting ermployment and matters of pohicy Should there be
frans-national 1Issues to discuss, a faciity exsts to engage a European
Forum made up of representatives from country Forums

Employee opnion surveys are conducted every two to three years
in the UK, Germany and France by external research companies, to
seek employees’ views on a wide range of subjects Programmes of
work resulting from the feedback are agreed at country level and
executed locally Invoiving beth management and employees The
HR Director 1s responsible for ensunng actions are completed and
properly communicated across the business

Equal opportunities

The Group s committed to equal opportunties, monitorng and
reguiarty remewing policies and practices to ensure that t meets current
legistative requirements as well as Computacenter’s own ntemal
standards No employee or potential employee recenes less favourable
treatment or consideration on grounds of race, national or ethnic ongn,
gender, age, disability, sexual onentation or martal status The Group

15 committed to make full use of the talents and resources of all ts
employees and to provide a healthy emironment that encourages
good and productive working relationshups within the organisation
Policies deating with equal opportuntties are i place n all parts of the
Group, which take account of the Group's overall commitment and also
addresses kocal regulatory requirements The HR Department monitors
and reports to the Board on developments in regulation and practice n
the vanous jJunsdictions where the Group companies operate, thereby
ensunng that appropnate action can be taken to ensure compliance

Performance and personal development

The Group ts committed to the development of its employees through
aregular performance review process Managers are responsible for
settng and reviewing personal objectves aligned fo corporate and
functional goals, reviewing performance aganst behavioural standards
approprate to job level, agreeng approprate traning and development
interventions, and discussing career asprrations The Group Executve
Committee has overall responsibiity for montonng management
development and ensuring that the required skills are available to meet
the current and future management needs of the Group At dvisional
and funchional level, review processes exist to ensure that there 1s
breadth and depth of management talent throughout the business

Each year, approamately 2 5% of the Group's salary expense s spent
on technical raning and skills development Computacenter's reward
strategy s reviewed reguiarly and continues to ernphasise perfomance-
related pay, parbcularly for more serior managers, with bonus payments
afigned to financal performance,

In 2005, the UK business was awarded Investors in People status
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Directors’ report continued

Workplace

Internationat human rights obligations and international employment
laws are met through a broad range of policies across the Group
These ensure that, for example, employees are not subject to
discnmination, arbrdrary or unjust dismussal or unjust application of
wage rates Appropriate employee benefit programmes exist across
the Group

Business ethics

An ethics policy 1s operated by the Group, which includes a
requirement for all employees to report abuses or non-conformance
with the policy (whistle-blowing’} This policy commits
Computacenter employees to the highest standards of ethical
behaviour in respect of customers, suppliers, colleagues and cther
stakeholders in the business

Community relations and chanty activities

The Group supports community and chantable projects as part of
ts commitment to corporate social responsibility and encourages its
employees to support such projects It alse organises and supports
ad-hoc charitable fundraising events In addon, the donation of T
eqgupment to schools and other chantable causes is a feature of the
Group's recycling programmes  In 2006 the Group made chantable
donations amounting to £61,000

Going concern

The Drrectors confirm that they are satisfied that the Company and
the Group have adequate resources to continue n business for the
foreseeable future For this reason, they continue to adopt the gong
concern basis In prepanng the accounts

Statement of Directors’ responsibilities in relation to the
financiaf statements

The Drectors are responsible for prepanng the Annual Report and
the financial statements N accordance with apphicable company law
and those International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by
the European Urion

The Drectors are required (o prepare financial statements for each
financeal year which present farly the financial position of the
Company and of the Group and the results and cash flows of the
Group for that period In prepanng those financial statements, the
Dwectors are required to

» select sutable accounting policies and then apply them
consistently,

* make udgements and estmates that are reasonable and prudent,

¢ state whether applicable accounting standards have been
followed, subject to any matenal departures beng disclosed and
explained In the accounts, and

* prepare the accounts on a gong concern basis unless itis
inapproprate to presume that the Group or Cormpany will continue
In s business

The Drectors are responsible for keeping proper accounting

records, which disclose with reasonabile accuracy at any time the
financial position of the Group and enable them to ensure that the
accounts comply with the Companies Act 1985 and Article 4 of the
IAS Regulation They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets
of the Group and hence taking reasonable steps for the prevention
and detection of fraud and cther rregularties

Directors’ statement as to disclosure of information to auditors
Each of the persons who s a Director at the date of approval of this
report confirms that

* 1o the best of each Director’s knowledge and belief, there s no
information relevant to the preparation of their report of which the
Company's auditors are unaware, and

» each Drrector has taken all steps a director might reasonably be
expected to have taken, to be aware of relevant audit information
and to establish that the Company's auditors are aware of that
rformation

This confirmation s gven and should be interpreted in accordance

with the provisions of s 23424 of the Companies Act 1885

Auditors

Ernst & Young LLP has expressed its willingness to continue in office
as audrtor and a resolution approving the re-appointrment of Emst &
Young LLP as the Compary’s auditor will be proposed at the
forthcoming Annual General Meeting

By order of the Board

/q’FWu/vv Ponad

SJ Benadé
Secretary
12 March 2007
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Independent auditors’ report to the shareholders of Computacenter plc

We have audited the Group financial statements of Computacenter
pic for the year ended 31 December 2006 which compnse
Consoiidated Income Staternent, the Consolidated Balance

Sheset, the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement, the Consolidated
Statement of Changes in Equity and the related notes 1 to 29
These Group financial statements have been prepared under the
accounting pokcies set out theren

We have reported separately on the Parent Company financial
staterents of Computacenter pic for the year ended 31 December
2006 and on the information in the Directors’ Remuneration Report
that 1s described as having been audted

This report 1s made solely to the Company’s members, as a body, n
accordance with Section 235 of the Companies Act 1985 Our audit
work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Compary’s
members those matters we are required to state 1o theminan
auditors’ report and for no other purpose To the fullest extent
perrmitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to
anyone other than the Company and the Company's members

as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opmnions

we have formed

Respective responsibilities of Directors and auditors
The Drrectors' responsibilies for prepanng the Annual Report
and the Group financial statements in accordance with applicable
United Kingdom law and International Financial Reporting
Standards (FRS) as adopted by the European Union are set

out n the Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities

Our responsibifity s 1o audit the Group financial statements in
accordance with relevant legal and regulatory requirements
and Internahonal Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland)

We report to you our opinion as to whether the Group financial
statements gve a true and far view and whether the Group financial
statements have been property prepared in accordance with the
Companies Act 1985 and Article 4 of the IAS Regulation We also
report to you whether in our opinion the nforrmation gven n the
Directors’ Report 15 congistent with the financial statements

I addition we report to you if, in our opirion, we have not receved
all the information and explanations we require for our audt, or if
nformation speciied by law regarding Drectors' remuneration and
other transactions 1s not disclosed

We review whether the Corporate Governance Staternent reflects
the Company’s comphance with the nine provisions of the 2003
Combined Code specified for our review by the Listing Rules of the
Financial Services Authority, and we report if it does not We are not
required to consider whether the Board's statements oninternal
control cover all nisks and controls, or form an opinion on the
effectveness of the Group’s corporate govemnance procedures

or its nsk and control procedures

We read other mformation contaned in the Annual Report and
consider whether it s consistent with the audited Group financial
statements The other information compnses only the Charman's
Statement, Chief Executive’s Review, Risk Management Report,
Finance Directors Review, Corporate Governance Statement, the
Directors' Report and the unaudited part of the Directors’
Rernuneration Report We consider the smphications for our report of
we become aware of any apparent misstatements or matenal
meconsistencies with the Group financial statements Our
responsibilities do not extend to any other information

Basis of audit opinion

We conducted our audit n accordance with International Standards
on Auditng (UK and freland) issued by the Auditing Practices Board
An audit ncludes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant
to the amounts and disclosures in the Group financiat statements

It also ncludes an assessment of the significant estimates and
judgements made by the Directors in the preparation of the Group
financial statements, and of whather the accounting policies are
appropnate to the Group's circumstances, conststently applied

and adequately disclosed

We planned and performed our audit 50 as to obtam all the
information and explanations which we considered necessary

in order fo provide us with sufficient evidence to give reasonable
assurance that the Group financial statements are free from material
misstaterment, whether caused by fraud or other wregularnty or esror
In farming our cpnion we also evaluated the overall adequacy of the
presentation of information in the Group financial statements

Opinion
In our opinion

¢ the Group financial statements give a true and farr view, In
accordance with [FRS as adopted by the European Union,
of the state of the Group's affars as at 31 December 2006
and of ts profit for the year then ended,

* the Group financial statements have been properly prepared n
accordance with the Companies Act 1985 and Article 4 of the
IAS Regulation, and

* the information given n the Directors’ report 1s consistent with
the Group financial staterments

ol T\ W

Ernst & Young LLP
Regqistered auditor
Luton

12 March 2007
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Consolidated income statement
For the year ended 31 December 2006

2006 2005
Notas £000 £000
Revenue 3 2,269,903 2,285,209
Cost of sales {1,974,437) {1,996,381)
Gross profit 295,466 288,828
Distnbution costs {19,075) (19,928)
Administratve expenses (241,408} {239,959)
Operating profit: 4
Before share based payments and exceptional items 34,983 28,041
Share based payments {1,411) 392
Operating profit before exceptional items 33,572 29,333
Imparment of non-current assets 5 {2,606) -
Redundancy costs 5 {2,425) (1.675)
Operating profit 28,541 27,658
Finance revenue 7 8,677 8,127
Finance costs 8 {2,289) {2,002)
Share of profit of associate 15 - 229
Profit before tax:
Before exceptional tems 37,960 35,687
Imparrment on non-current assets 5 (2,606) -
Redundancy costs 5 (2,425) (1,675)
Profit before tax 32,929 34,012
Income tax expense 9 (13,994) (13,579
Profit for the year 18,935 20,433
Attributable to
Equity holders of the parent 10 18,927 20,406
Minonty mierests 8 27
18,935 20433
Eamings per share 10
— basic for profit for the year 11.0p 10¢8p
- basic for profit before exceptional items 13.9p 118p
— diluted for profit for the year 10.9p 109p
- ditsted for profit before exceptional tems 13.8p 118p
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Consolidated balance sheet
As at 31 Decernber 2006

2006 2005
Notes £'000 £000
Non-current assets
Property, plant and eguipment 12 84,874 81,601
Intangible assets 13 9,945 8493
Investrent accounted for using the equity methed 15 - 288
Deferred ncome tax asset 9 6,166 5,528
100,985 96,910
Current assets
Inventories 16 94,586 100,233
Trade and other recevables 17 427,319 382970
Prepayments 50,435 63476
Forward currency contracts 11 191
Cash and short-term deposits 18 77,882 164,797
650,333 711667
Total assets 751,318 808577
Current habilties
Trade and other payables 19 315,846 315997
Deferred income 77,714 73,827
Financial iabilities 20 55,736 64,131
Income tax payabile 8,394 5712
Provisions 22 2,132 2180

459,822 461,857

Nen-current iabilties

Financial kabiities 20 11,362 275
Provisions 22 12,839 14,007
Cther non-current habiliies o917 3n
Deferred income tax labities 9 1,249 1,393
26,367 16,046
Total habilities 486,189 477,803
Net assets 265129 33056/
Capital and reserves
Issued capital 24 9,51 9,505
Share prermum 24 2,247 74,680
Capttal redemption reserve 24 74,542 100
Own shares held 24 (2,503) (2503
Other reserves 24 {2,455) (1.757)
Retaned eamngs 183,700 250630
Shareholders’ equrty 285102 330655
Minority interest 27 19
Total equity 265,129 330674
Approved by the Board on 12 March 2007
-
MJ Nornis FA Conophy

Chief Executive Finance Director
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Consolidated statement of changes in equity
For the year ended 31 December 2006

Attributable to equity holders of the parent

Captal Own cﬁmrr:g]y

Issued Share  redemption shares translation Retaned Mwonty Total

capital premum resene held reserve TS Total niterest equity

£000 £000 £'000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £'000
At 31 December 2004 9,489 73,920 100 (2,503) (911) 245113 325,208 45 325254
Adoption of IAS 32
&IAS 39 - - - - - (148) (148) - (148
At 1 January 2005 9,489 73,920 100 (2,503) 911) 244,965 325,060 46 325,106
Exchange differences on
refranslation of foreign operations - - - - (846) - (846) - (846)
Net ncome/iexpenses) recognised
directly n equity - - - - (846) - {846) - (846)
Profit for the penod - - - - - 20,406 20,406 27 20,379
Total recogrised ncome and
expenses for the year - - - - (846) 20,406 19,560 27 19,533
Cost of share-based payments - - - - - (366) (366) - (366}
Exercise of options 16 760 - - - - 776 - 776
Equty dvidends - - - - - (14,375) (14,375) - {14,375)

16 760 - - (846) 5,665 5,595 &n 5,568
At 31 December 2005 9,505 74,680 100 {2,503) (1,757) 250,630 330,655 19 330,674
At 1 January 2006 9,505 74,680 100 {2,503) (1,757 250,630 330,655 19 330,674
Exchange differences on
retranslation of foreign operations - - - - (698) - (698} - (698)
Net ncome/{expenses) recognised
directly m equity - - - - (698) = 698) - {898
Profit for the penod - - - - - 18,927 18,927 8 18,935
Total recognised incorme and
expenses for the year - - - - {698) 18,297 18,229 8 18,237
Cost of share-based payrnent - - - - - 1411 1411 - 1,411
Exercise of options 66 2317 - - - - 2,383 - 2383
Bonus issue 74,442 (74,442 - - - - - - -
Expenses on bonus issue - {308 - - - - (308 - (308
Share redernption (74,442 - 74,442 - - (73,886) (73,886 - (73,886)
Expenses on share redemption - - - - - (56) (56) - {56)
Equity dmdends - - - - - (13,3260 (13,326 - (13,326
66 (72,433) 74,442 - (698) (66930) (65553 8 {65,545)

At 31 December 2006 9,571 2,247 74,542 (2,503) {2,455) 183,700 265,102 27 265,129
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Consolidated cash flow statement
For the year ended 31 December 2006

2006 2005
Notes £'000 £:000
Operating activihies
Operating profit 28,541 27,658
Adjustrnents to reconcile Group operating profit to net cash inflows frorm operating actvities
Deprecation 14,585 15,535
Amortisation 1,907 1,784
Share-based payment 1,41 {366)
Imparment of property, plant and equipment 2,492 -
Loss/Aprofit) on cisposal of property, plant and equipment 353 85
Imparment of ntangible assets 114 -
Loss on disposal of mtangible assets 9 -
Brdend recerved from associate 202 303
Decrease n mventonies 4,560 16,824
Increase in trade and other recevables (35498) (25504)
Increase n trade and other payables 6,895 20925
Currency and other adjustments 5 287
Cash generated from operations 25576 65,961
Income taxes paxd (11,994) {(18,366)
Net cash flow from operating activities 13,582 47595
Investing activities
Interest recenved 6,600 9,086
Sale of subsidiary net of cash disposed of - (252
Sale of property, plant and equipment 24 205
Purchase of property, plant and equipment {7,504} (6,950)
Purchases of ntangible assets (2,499) {3:385)
Sale of nterest in associate 364 -
Funds receved from settiement of net asset claim on previously acquired subsidiary - 26918
Net cash flow from investing activities {3,015) 25622
Financing activities
Interest paid (2,152} (2,063}
Dwidends paid to equity shareholders of the parent (13,326) (14.418)
Proceeds from share ssues 2,383 776
Repayment of capital element of finance leases {2,629) 321)
Repayment of loans {326) -
Repayment of other loans 5,201) -
New borrowings 12,447 -
Retum of caprtal (74,442) -
Expenses on retum of capital {365) -
Decrease in factor financing {1,317) 6,401)
Neot cash flow from financing activities {84,988) (22427)
{Decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents {74,421} 50,790
Effect of exchange rates on cash and cash equivalents 492 1576
Cash and cash equnalents at the begnning of the year 18 132,911 80.545
Cash and cash equivalents at the year end 18 58,082 132,91
Analysis of changes in net funds
At Cash At3t
January ferws m Non- Exchange December
2006 yoar cashfliow  diferences 20048
£'000 £7000 £000 £'000 £000
Cash and cash equialents 132,911 {74,421) - 4g2 68,982
Factor financing (31,542 1,377 - 616  (29,549)
Bank ioan (326) 326 - - -
Net funds pnor to customer-spectfic loans and finance leases 101,043 (72,7118} - 1,108 29,433
Finance leases 652) 2,629 {13,380 - {11,403)
Other loans - 5201 (12,447 - (7.248)
Net funds 100,391 (64.888) (25827 1,108 10,784
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2006

1 Authornisation of financial statements and statement
of comphance with IFRS

The consolidated financial staterments of Computacenter pic for

the year ended 31 December 2006 were authonsed for issue n
accordance with a resolutton of the Drectors on 12 March 2007 The
balance sheet was signed on behalf of the Board by MJ Noms and
FA Conophy Computacenter plc s a imited company incorporated
and domicied in England whose shares are publicly traded

The Group’s financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS), as adopted
by the European Union as they apply to the financial statements of
the Group for the year ended 31 December 2006 and appled in
accordance with the Comparues Act 1985

2 Summary of significant accounting policies

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements are presented in sterling and
all values are rounded to the nearest thousand (£'000) except when
otherwmse indicated

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial
statements of Computacenter plc and its subsicianes as at

31 December each year The financial staterments of subsidiaries
are prepared for the same reporting year as the parent company,
using existing GAAP In each country of operation Adjustments
are made to translate any differences that may exist between the
respective local GAAPs and IFRS

All mtra-group balances, transactions, ncome and expenses and
profit and losses resulting from intra-group transactions that are
recognised In assets, have been elminated in full

Subsidianes are consohdated from the date on which the Group
obtans control and cease to be consolidated from the date on
which the Group no longer retains control

Minority Interests represent the portion of profit or loss and net
assets In subsidianies that 1s not held by the Group and are
presented separately within equity in the consolidated balance
sheet, separately from parent shareholders’ equity

Property, plant and squipment
Property, plant and equipment 1s stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses

Depreciation, down to residual value, is calculated on a straight-hne
basis over the estmated useful ife of the asset as follows

Freehold buldings 25-50 years

Short leasehold mprovements  shorter of 7 years and penod to
expiry of lease

Fictures and fittings

- Head office 5-15years

- Cther shorter of 7 years and penod to
expry of lease

Office machmery, computer

harcware 2-15years
Maior vehicles 3years

Freehold lznd 1s not depreciated An itern of property, plant and
equipment 1s de-recognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected to anse from the continued use
of the asset Any gain or loss arising on de-recognition of the asset
{calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of the iterm) 1s inckuded in the Income
statement in the year the item is de-recogrised

Leases

Assets held under finance leases, which transfer to the Group
substantially all the nsks and benefits incidentat to ownership of the
leased itemn, are capitalised at the inception of the lease at the far
value of the leased asset or, if lower, at the present value of the
minimurn lease payments Leass payrments are appartioned
between the finance charges and reduction of the lease lability so
as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance
of the liabiity Finance charges are charged directly against ncome

Capitahsed leased assets are depreciated over the shorter of the
estimated useful life of the asset or the lease term

Leases where the lessor retains substantally all the nsks and
benefits of ownership of the asset are classified as operating leases
Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense in the
income statement on a straight-ine basis over the lease term

Intangible assets

Software and software lcences

Software and software licences includes computer software that 1s
not Integral to a related item of hardware These assets are stated at
cost less accumulated amortisation and any imparment in value
Amortisation 1s calculated on straight-lne basis over the estmated
usefullife of four years

The carrying values of software and software licences are reviewed
for mparment when events or changes in crcumstances ndicate
that the carrying value may not be recoverable If any such
indication exists and where the carrying values exceed the
estimated recoverable amount, the assets are wntten down

1o ther recoverable amount

Other intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately from a business are carned
nitally at cost Followang nitial recognition, the histonc cost model
15 apphed, with ntangible assets beng carmed at cost less
accumulated amortisation and accumulated impaiment losses
intangible assets with a finte bfe have no residual value and are
amortised on a straight Ine basis over ther expected useful Iives
with charges ncluded in administrative expenses

The carrying value of intangible assets 1s reviewed for mpawrment
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate the carrying
value may not be recoverable

Goodwill

Business combinations on or after 1 January 2004 are
accounted for under IFRS 3 using the purchase method Any
excess of the cost of the business combination over the Group's
interest in the net farr value of the identifiable assets, habilites
and contingent habilities 1s recognised in the balance sheet as
goodwill and 1s not amortised To the extent that the net far
value of the acquired entity’s identfiable assets, labilities and
contingent habilities 1s greater than the cost of the investment,

a gan 1s recognised immediately in the ncome statement
Goodwill recogrused on acquisitions prior to 1 January 2004,
the date of transition to IFRS, s recorded at its amortised cost at
transition to IFRS and s no longer amortised Any goodwill asset
ansing on the acquisition of equity accounted entities is ncluded
within the cost of those entities
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies continued

After initial recognition, goodwill 1s stated at cost less any
accumulated mparment losses, with the carrying value being
reviewed for imparment, at least annually and whenever events
or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value
may be impared

For the purpose of imparrment testing, goodwili is allocated to the
related cash-generating units monrtored by management, usually at
business segment level or statutory company level as the case may
be Where the recoverable amount of the cash-gensrating untt is
less than its carrying amount, ncluding goodwill, an imparment 1058
15 recognised in the iIncome statement

The carrying amount of goodwill allocated to a cash-generating unit
Is taken into account when determining the gain or loss on disposal
of the untt, or of an operation within t Goodwill ansing on
acquisttions prior to 31 December 1997 remains set off directly
agamst reserves even if the related investment becomes imparred
or the business 1s disposed of

Impairment of assets

The Group assesses at each reporting date whether there 1s an
indication that an asset may be impared If any such indication
exists, or when annual Imparrment testing for an asset 1s required,
the Group makes an estimate of the asset's recoverable amount
An asset's recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's or cash-
generating unit's farr value less costs to sell and its value in use and
1s determuned for an Indnadual asset, unless the asset does not
generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from
other assets or groups of assets Where the carrying amount of

an asset exceeds Its recoverable amount, the asset 1s considered
impared and 1s writter down to its recoverable amount In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to ther present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the tme value of money and
the risks specific to the asset Imparment losses of continuing
operations are recogmsed n the income staternent n those expense
categornes consistent with the function of the mparred asset

Investment in an associate

The Group's interest In its associate was accounted for using the
equity method of accounting The associate 1s an entity over which
the Group has significant influence and which is neither a subsidiary
nor a joint venture The financial statements of the associate were
used by the Group to apply the equity method The reporting dates
of the associate and the Group were identcal As 1s the case with
the Group's subsidiaries, the associate prepared its accounts under
local GAAP These were then converted ito IFRS dunng the
consohidation process of the Group

The investment in the associate was carned in the Group's balance
sheet at cost plus its share of the post-acquisition changes in the
net assets of the associate, less distnbutions receved and less any
rnparment in value The Group's mcome statement reflected its
share of the results, after tax, of operations of the associate Where
there was a change recogmsed directly in the associate's equity, the
Group recogrised its share of any changes and discloses this in its
Staternent of Changes in Equity

Financial assets

Financial assets are recogrised at therr far value, which indially
equates to the consideration gven plus directly attributable
transaction costs associated with the rwvestment

Inventones

Inventories are carried at the lower of weighted average cost
and net realisable value after making allowance for any obsolete
or slow moving items Costs include those incurred in bringing
each product to its present location and condition, on a first-in,
first-out basis

Net realisable value 1s the estimated selling price n the ordinary
course of business, less the estmated costs necessary to make
the sale

Trade and other receivables

Trade recevables, which generally have 30-90 day terms, are
recognised and carned at ongnal Invoice amount less an allowance
for any uncollectable amounts An estimate for doubtful debts is
madle when collection of the full amount 1S no longer probable
Balances are wnitten off when the probability of recovery 1s
assessed as being remote

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and short-term deposits in the balance sheet comprise
cash at bank and in hand and short-term deposits with an
onginal matunty of three months or less

For the purpose of the consolidated cash flow staternent, cash
and cash equivalents consist of cash and cash equivalents as
defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts where a night
of set-off exists

Interest-bearing borrowmngs

All borrowings are initially recognised at far value less directly
attributable transaction costs Borrowng costs are recognised
as an expense when incurred

After mital recognition, nterest-bearng borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the efiective
nterest method Amortised cost 15 calculated by taking into account
any I1ssue costs and any discount or premium on setflement

De-recogmtion of financial assets and habilities

Financial assets

A financial asset {or, where appticable a part of a financial asset or
part of a group of similar financial assets) 1s de-recognised where

¢ the rights to recene cash flows from the asset have expired,

+ the Group retains the nghit to recenve cash flows from the asset,
but has assumed an obiigation to pay therm in full without matenal
delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement, or

+ the Group has transferred its nghts to recenve cash flows from the
asset and either (a) has transferred substantiatly all the nsks and
rewards of the asset, or (b} has netther transferred nor retaned
substantially all the nsks and rewards of the asset, but has
transferred control of the asset

Financial habilibies
A financial habibty 15 de-recognised when the obligation under
the labiity 1s discharged or cancelled or exprres




44 Computacenter plec Annual report & accounts 2006

Notes to the consohdated financial statements continued

2 Summary of significant accounting policies continued

Derivative financial instruments

The Group uses foreign currency forward contracts to hedge its
nsks assocated with foreign currancy fluctuations From 1 January
2005 the forward contracts are ntally recognised at farr value on
the date that the contract s entered into and are subsequently re-
measured at far value at each reporting date The farr value of
forward currency contracts s calculated by reference to current
forward exchange rates for contracts with similar maturity profiles
Forward contracts are recorded as assets when the far value is
positve and as liabilites when the far value 1s negatve

For those dervatives designated as hedges and for which hedge
accounting 1s desired, the hedging refationship 15 documented at its
inception This documentation identifies the hedging instrument, the
hedged tem or transaction, the nature of the risk being hedged and
how effectveness will be measured throughout its duration Such
hedges are expected at nception to be highly effectve

For the purpose of hedge accounting, hedges are classified as

* far value hedges when hedging the exposure to changes in the
far value of a recogrised asset or lability, or

+ cash flow hedges when hedging exposurs to variabilty in cash
flows that is erther attributable to a particular risk associated with
arecognised asset or hability or a hughly probable forecast
transaction

Any gains or losses ansing from changes in far value on forward
contracts that do not qualify for hedge accounting are taken directly
to the meome statement

Foreign currency transtation

The Group's presentation currency 1s Pounds Sterling (£) Each
entity in the Group determines its own functional currency and items
included in the financial statements of each entity are measured
using that functional currency Transactions in foregn currencies are
intially recerded in the functional currency at the exchange rate
ruling at the date of the fransaction Monetary assets and labiies
denominated in foreign currencles are retranslated at the functional
cumency rate of exchange ruling at the balance sheet date All
differences are taken to the consolidated income statement

Non-monetary tems that are measured in terms of histoncal cost n
a foreign curmency are translated using the exchange rate as at the
date of niial transaction

The functional currencies of the overseas subsidianes are Euro (€)
and US Dollar (US$) As at the reporting date, the assets and
abiities of these overseas subsidianes are transiated into the
presentation currency of the Group at the rate of exchange rulng at
the balance sheet date and ther ncome statements are translated
at the average exchange rates for the year Since 1 January 2004,
the date of transition to IFRS, exchange differences ansing onthe
retranslation are taken directly to a separate component of equrty
On disposal of a foreign entity, the deferred cumulative amount
recogrised in equity relating to that particular foresgn operation 1s
recognised In the ncome statement

Provisions

Provisions are recogrised when the Group has a present obhgation
{legal or constructive} as a result of a past event, it 1s probable that
an outfiow of resources embodying economic benefits wall be
required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be
made of the amount of the abligation

If the effact of the tme value of money 15 matenal, provisions are
deterrmined by discounting the expected future cash-flows at a pre-
tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the tme value
of money and, where appropriate, the nsks specific to the hability
Where discounting I1s used, the increase in the prowision due to the
passage of tme 1s recogrised as a borrowing cost

Taxation

Current tax

Current tax assets and labilitres for the current and prior penods are
measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or pad 1o
the tax authonttes The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the
amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted by the
balance sheet date

Deferrad tax

Deferred income tax i1s recogrised on all temporary differences
ansing between the tax bases of assets and habilities and their
carrying amounts In the financial statements, with the following
exceptions

+ where the termporary difference anses from the imitial recogrition
of goodwill or of an asset or lability In a transaction that 18 not a
business combination that at the tme of the transaction affects
nether accounting nor taxable profit or loss,
in respect of taxable termporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries, associates and jont ventures, where
the tming of the reversal of the temporary differences can be
controlled and it i probable that the temporary differences will
not reverse In the foreseeable future, and
» deferred ncome tax assets are recogrised only to the extent that
it 15 probable that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences, camed forward tax credits or
tax losses can be utilised

Deferred ncome tax assets and habilites are measured on an
undiscounted basis at the tax rates that are expected to apply when
the related asset 1s realsed or kability i1s settled, based on tax rates
and laws enacted or substantvely enacted at the balance sheet date

Income tax is charged or credited directly to equity if i relates to
itemns that are credited or charged to equity Otherwise income tax
15 recognised in the income statement

VAT
Revenues, expenses and assets are recogrused net of the amount
of VAT except

« where the VAT incurred on a purchase of goods and services 1S
not recoverable from the taxation authonty, in which case the VAT
18 recognised as part of the cost of acquisihon of the asset or as
part of the expense itarm as applcable, and

* trade recevables and payables are stated with the amount of VAT
included

The net amount of VAT recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation
authorty 1s Included as part of recevables or payables in the
balance sheet
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies continued

Revenue

Revenue I1s recognised to the extent that 1t s probable that the
economic benefits wll flow to the Group and the revenue can be
reliably measured Revenue s measured at the far vatue of the
consideration receved, excluding discounts, rebates gven to
customers, VAT and other sales tax or duty The following specific
recognition cntera must also be met before revenue 1s recogrised

Product
Revenue 1s recognised when the significant risks and rewards of
ownership of the goods have passed to the buyer, usually on

dispatch of goods

Professional services
Revenue 15 recogrised when recenable under a contract following
delivery of a service or in ine wath the level of work completed

Support and Managed Services

Contracted Managed Services revenue is recognised over the
contract perod on a straight-line basis, which represents the level of
completion of an ndmdual contract The unrecogrised contracted
revenue I1s ncluded as deferred income in the balance shest
Amounts Invoiced relating to more than one period are deferred

and recognised over therr relevant life

Finance revenue
Revenue 1s recognised as nterest accrues

Dnadends
Revenue 1s recognised when the Group's nght to receve payment
15 established

Rental mcome

Rental ncome ansing from operating leases s accounted for either
on a straight-line basis over the lease term, or where the service Is
not provided on a straight-line basis revenue is recognised In ine
with the time pattern of the provision of the service

Pensions and other post-employment benefits

The Group operates a defined contribution scheme availlable to all
UK employess Contributions are recognised as an expense in the
income statement as they become payable i accordance with the
rules of the scheme There are no matenal pension schemes within
the Group's overseas operations

Employee benefits

In accordance with IAS 19, the Group provides for accumulating
absences The cost s measured as the additional amount that the
Group expects to pay as a result of the unused entitlement that has
accumulated at the balance sheet date

Exceptional items

The Group presents as exceptional tems on the face of the ncome
statement, those materal tems of ncome and expense which,
because of the nature and expected nfrequency of the events
gming nse to them, ment separate presentation to allow
shareholders to understand better elements of financiat
performance n the year, 0 as to faciitate companson with prior
penods and to assess better trends in financial performance

Share-based payment transactions

Employees (including Executve Directors) of the Group can recene
rermuneration in the form of share-based payment transactions,
whereby employees render services in exchange for shares or
nghts over shares (‘equity-settled transactions’)

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees 1s measured
by reference to the far value of the award at the date at which they
are granted The farr value 1s determined by utilsing an approprate
valuation model, further details of which are gven in note 25 In
valuing equity-settied transachons, no account 1s taken of any
performance conditions as none of the conditions set are market-
related ones

The cost of equity-settled transactions 1s recogrised, togsther with
a corresponding increasa in equity, over the penod n which the
performance and/or service condtions are fuffilled, ending on the
date on which the relevant employees becomne fully entitled to the
award (‘vesting date’) The cumulative expense recognised for
equity-settled transactions at each reporting date, untl the vesting
date, refiects the extent to which the vesting penod has expired and
Directors’ best estimate of the number of equity instruments that will
utimately vest The income staternent charge or credt for a penod
represents the movement in cumulative expense recognised as at
the beginning and end of that penod  As the schemes do not
nciude any market-related performance condiions, no expense

ts recognised for awards that do not uttimately vest

Where the terms of an equnty-settled award are modified, as a
minmum, an expense Is recognised as if the terms had not been
modified In addibon, an expensa s recognised for any modification,
which Increases the total far value of the share-based payment
arrangement, or is otherwise beneficial to the employee as
measured at the date of modification

Where an equity-settied award s cancelled, it 1s treated as f it had
vested on the date of cancellation, and arny expense not yet
recogrused for the award is recogrised mmediately However, Ifa
new award is substiuted for the cancelled award, and designated
as a replacement award on the date that i 15 granted, the cancefled
and new awards are treated as if they were a modification of the
original award, as described m the previous paragraph

The diutive effect of outstanding options 1s reflected as additonal
share difution in the computation of earmings per share (see note 10)

The Group has an employee share trust for the granting of non-
transferable options to executives and senior employees Shares
in the Group held by the employee share trust are treated as
nvestment in own shares and are recorded at cost as a deduction
from equity (see note 24)

The Group has taken advantage of the transitional provisions of
IFRS 2 n respect of equity-settled awards and has apphed IFRS 2
only to equity-settled awards granted after 7 November 2002 that
had not vested on or before 1 January 2005

Own shares held

Computacenter plc shares held by the Group are classified in
shareholders’ equity as ‘own shares held’ and are recognised at
cost Consderation receved for the sale of such shares 1s also
recogrised m equity, with any difference between the proceeds
from sale and the ongmnal cost being taken to revenue reserves
No gain or loss 1s recognised in the performance staterments on
the purchase, sale, issus or cancellation of equity shares
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

2 Summary of significant accounting policies continued

New standards and interpretations not applied
During the year, the 1ASB and IFRIC have issued the following standards and interpretations with an effective date after the date of these
financial statements

intemational Accountng Standards (AS/AFRSS) Etfectve data
IFRS 7 Financial Instruments  Disclosures 1 January 2007
IFRS B Operating Segments 1 January 2009
1AS 1 Amendment - Presentation of Financial Statements Capital Disclosures 1 January 2007
Intermational Financial Reporting Intsrpretations Commttes (IFRIC) Effectve date
IFRIC 7 Appiying the Restatement Approach under AS 29 Financial Reporting n Hyperinflatonary Economies 1 March 2006
IFRIC 8 Scope of IFRS 2 1 May 2006
IFRIC 9 Reassessment of Embedded Dervatives 1 June 2006
IFRIC 10 Interm Financial Reporting and imparment 1 November 2006
IFRIC 11 IFRS 2 — Group and Treasury Share Transactions 1 March 2007
IFRIC 12 Service Concession Arrangements 1 January 2008

The Directors do not anticipate that the adoption of these standards and interpretations will have a matenal impact on the Group's financial
statements in the period of ntial application

Upon adoption of IFRS 7, the Group will have to disclose additional information about tts financial instruments, ther significance and the
nature and extent of nsks that they gve nse to More specifically the Group will need to disclose the far value of ts financial Instruments and
1ts nsk exposure n greater detal There wilt be no effect on reported ncome or net assets

3 Segmental analysis

The Group's primary reporting format 1s geographical segments and its secondary format is business segments The Group's geographical
segments are determined by the location of the Group's assets and operations The Group's business in each gecgraphy 1s managed
separately and held in separate statutory entibies

Each geographical business contains the following three business segments
* the Product segment supples computer hardware and software to large and medm corporate and government customers and to
other distributors It ncludes the resale of 3rd party services for which the Group retains no risks or rewards post sale, and

* the Professional Services segment provides technical and project management skills to enable customers in the corporate and
government sectors 1o implement and integrate new technologies into ther infrastructures, and

¢ the Support and Managed Services segment provides an outsourcing service for specific areas of infrastructure management to
customers in the corporate and government sectors

The sale of goods 1s reported n the Product segment The rendering of services 1s reported n the Professional Services and Support
and Managed Services segments

Transfer prices between geographical segments are set on an arm's length basis in a manner simidar to transactions with third parties
The impact of inter-segment sales on operating profit by segment s not significant

Geographical segments
The following tables present revenue, expenditure and certan asset iInformation regarding the Group's geographical segments for
the years ended 31 December 2006 and 2005
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3 Segmental analysis continued

UK Germany France Benelux Total

£000 £000 £'000 £:000 £000
Year ended 31 December 2006
Revenue
Sales to external customers 1,281,498 654671 307264 26,470 2,269,903
Inter-segment sales 8,601 1,734 764 3336 24,435
Segment revenue 1,280,093 666405 308,028 20,806 2,204,338
Result
Gross profit 181,900 83,405 27,711 2450 295,468
Distribubon costs {(11,765) (3,646) {3.521) (143)  (19,075)
Admrnistrative expenses (132,665) (76,971 (30,685 (2,498 (242,819)
QOperating profit pre-exceptionals 31470 2,788 {6,495) (191) 33,572
Exceptional terns - - {5,031} - {5,031}
Operating profit 3r470 2,788 (11,526) (191) 28,541
Net finance ncome 6,834 {882 {1,475) 89) 4,388
Profit before tax 44,304 1,906 (13,001 (2800 32,929
Income tax expense (13,994}
Profit for the year 18,935
Assets and liabilities
Total segment assets 506,177 166,611 76,342 2188 751,318
Total segment hiabxlives 223296 145,382 112579 4,832 486,189
Other segment informaticn
Capital expenditure
Property, plant and equipment 10,387 9,557 852 89 20,885
Intangible assets 1,922 495 82 - 2,499
Depreciation 11,262 2,283 a36 104 14,585
Amortisation 1,561 293 63 - 1,907
Share-based payments 1173 202 28 8 1,411
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3 Segmental analysis continued

UK France Benelux Total
£000 £000 £000 £'000 £1000

Year ended 31 December 2005
Revenue
Sales to external customers 1351307 618,238 295784 19,880 2,285,209
Inter-segment sales B,401 24,604 293 3,539 36,837
Segment revenug 1,359708 642842 206,077 23419 2,322,046
Result
Gross profit 169,876 87,709 28941 2302 288,828
Distribution costs (11,315 (5,160) (3,360) 03 (19,928)
Admnistrative expenses (126488 (77548) (33219 2318 (239,567)
Operating profit pre-exceptionals 32,079 5,001 (7638 (09 29,333
Exceptional tems - - (1.675) - (1,675)
Operating profit 32,079 5,001 9,313 (109) 27,658
Net finance mcome 8,055 (553} (1.347} (30) 6,125
Share of associate’s profit - 229 - - 229
Profit before tax 40,134 4677 (10,660) (138 34,012
Income tax expense (13,579)
Profit for the year 20,433
Assets and liabilties
Segment assets 569,043 136784 100880 1582 808,289
Investment in an associate - 288 - - 288
Total assets 563,043 137072 100,880 1,582 808,577
Segment labiities 233129 116,895 123,952 3927 477,903
Total liabiities 233129 116895 123952 3927 417,903
Other segment information
Caprtal expenditure
Property, plant and equipment 6,138 1,020 555 124 7.837
Intangible assets 3.083 284 18 - 3,385
Depreciaton 11,570 2,981 882 102 15,535
Amortisation 1,003 285 358 38 1,784
Share-based payments (559) 138 21 8 {392)
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3 Segmental analysis continued

Business segments
The following tables present revenue information regarding the Group’s business segments for the years ended 31 December 2006
and 2005

Supportand
Product Services m Total
£'000 £'000 £000 £900
Year ended 31 December 2006
Revenue
Sates to extemal customers 1735210 128895 405798 2,269,903
Inter-segment sales 3,865 2723 17,847 24,435
Segment revenue 1,739,075 131618 423645 2,204,338
Support and
Professional  Managed
Product Servces Services Total
£003 £000 £1000 £000
Year ended 31 December 2005 (Restated)
Revenue
Sales to external customers 1,770410 114236 400,563 2,285,200
Inter-segment sales 23,694 3775 9368 38,837
Segment revenue 1,794,104 118,011 400,031 2,322,048

For the year ended 31 December 2005 an amount of £12,443,000 has been reclassified from Support and Managed Services to Product
This amount s 1n respect of 3rd party resold services in Germany for which the Group retains no nsks or rewards Historically these
amounts could not be separately dentified

It 1s not possible to split out assets, labilties and capital expenditure information by business segments Assets and habilities within
geographical segments are not allocated to business segments

4 Group operating profit
This 1s stated after charging/{crediting)

2006 2005

£'000 £000

Auditors’ remuneration — audit services - UK 177 202
- audit services - overseas 235 223

- taxation services 115 99

- other services 19 6

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 14,585 15,535
Loss/Apwofit) on disposal of property, plart and equipment 353 (85
Imparment of property, plant and equipment 2,492 -
Armortsation of ntangible assets 1,907 1,784
imparment of ntangible assets 114 -
Total depreciation and amartisation expense 19,451 17,234
Net foreign currency differences 15 )
Costs of nventones recogrised as an expensg 4,517,031 1586964
Operatng lease payrments - minimum lease payments 18,036 21,579
- sub-ease payments {723) (369)

Total lease and sub-lease payments recognised as an expense 18,313 21,210
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5 Exceptional items

2006 2005

£'000 £:000

imparment of property, plant and equipment 2,492 -
Imparment of ntanghle assets 114 -
Redundancy costs 2425 1,675
5,031 1675

Forecast cash flows for Computacenter France ne longer support the value of the non-current assets in the business, and accordingly a full
impairment to these assets has been recognised at 31 December 2006

Restructuning costs of £2,425,000 {2005 £1,675,000) were incurred duning the year ended 31 December 2006 These principally relate to
headcount reductions required to restructure the indrect cost base The 2005 comparatives have been restated to classify these costs as
exceptional tems accordingly

6 Staff costs and Directors’ emoluments

2006 2005

£000 £'000

Wages and salanes 342,669 339852
Socal securty costs 51,189 50,711
Pension costs 12,899 13,152

407,757 403715

Included in wages and salanes 1s a total charge for share based payments of £1,411,000 (2005 £392,000 credt), all of which anises from
transactions accounted for as equity-settled share-based payment transactions

The average monthly number of employees during the year was made up as follows

2006 2005
No No
UK 4,667 4825
Germany 3,605 3517
France 1,010 1,059
Benelux 116 104
9,398 9,505

7 Finance revenue
2006 2005
£'000 £'000
Bank nterest recevable 6,639 7,990
Income from nvestments 38 137
6,677 8,127

8 Finance costs

2006 2005
£'000 £'000
Bank loans and overdrafts 1,886 1,702
Other loans 403 300

2,289 2,002
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9 Income tax

a) Tax on profit on ordinary activities

2006 2005
£'000 £1000
Tax charged in the income statement
Current income tax
UK corporation tax 14,421 12,872
Forexgn tax 212 31
Adustments in respect of current ncome tax of previous years 76 (202
Consorturm rehef 59 {118)
Total current income tax 14,768 12,682
Deferred tax
Relating to onginaton and reversal of temporary differences (499} Qg7
Pricr year adustments {275} -
Total deferred tax (774) 997
Tax charge in the income statement 13,994 13,579
Tax refating to tems charged or credited to equity
Deferred tax
Relief on share option gans - 16
Tax charge In the statement of changes in equity - 16
b) Reconciliation of the total tax charge
2006 2005
£'000 £000
Accounting profit before ncome tax 32,029 34,012
At the UK standard rate of corporation tax of 30% (2005 30%) 9,879 10,204
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 1,147 673
Relief on share option gains {218) -
Adustments n respect of current ncome tax of previous years {214} (202
Higher tax on overseas eamings 49 1
Accounting depreciation n excess of tax deprecation n 518
Other tming differences (e16) (761}
Consortum relief 59 (xhle]
Profit of overseas undertakings not taxable due to brought forward loss offset {154) 4
Losses of overseas undertakings not avalable for rehef 4,041 3,269
At effective ncome tax rate of 42 6% (2005 39 9%) 13,094 13,579

¢) Unrecogmised tax losses

The Group has tax losses anising from the results of overseas subsidianes of £13,279,000 2005 £10,813,000) Deferred tax assets have not
been recognised n respect of these losses as they may nct be used to offset taxable profits elsewhere in the Group and they have ansen in

subsidiares that have been loss making for some time
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9 Income tax continued

d) Deferred tax
Deferred income tax at 31 December relates to the following

Consoldated Consolidated
batance sheet ncoma Statemen
2006 2005 2006 2005
£'000 £1000 £'000 £1000
Defarred income tax labilities
Accelerated capial allowances 1,198 1,339 {141} (116)
Revaluations of foreign exchange contracts to far value 51 54 51 54
Gross deferred ncome tax kiabiities 1,249 1,393
Defarred income tax assets
Relief on share option gains 178 - {178} 78
Timng differences 460 - (506} -
Losses avaiable for offset aganst future taxable income 5,528 5528 - 481
Gross deferred ncome tax assets 6,166 5528
Deferred income tax charge 774} 997
Net deferred income tax asset 4,7 4135

At 31 December 2006, there was no recognised or unrecognised deferred income tax kability (2005 £nil) for taxes that would be payable
on the unremitted earmnings of certain of the Group's subsidiaries as the Group has no liability to additional taxation should such amounts
be remitted due to the availlability of double taxation relief

10 Earnings per ordinary share

Basic earnings per share amounts are calculated by dividing net profit for the year attnbutable to ordinary equity holders of the parent by
the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year

Diuted earnings per share amounts are calculated by dividing the net profit attnbutable to ordinary shareholders by the weighted average
number of ordinary shares outstanding dunng the year adjusted for the effect of diutve options

The following reflects the inccme and share data used in the total operations basic and diluted earnings per share computations

2006 2005
£'000 £'000
Profit atiributable to equity holders of the parent 18,927 20,406
Exceptional items attributable to equity holders of the parent 5,031 1,675
Profit before exceptional tems attributable to equity holders of the parent 23,958 22,081
2006 2005
000's 000's
Basic weighted average number of shares {excludng own shares held) 172,312 187,210
Effect of diuton
Share options 1,232 658
Diuted wesghted average number of shares 173,544 187868

There have been no cther transactions nvotving ordinary shares or potental ordinary shares since the reporting date and before the
completion of these financial statements

11 Dividends paid and proposed

2006
£'000 £'000

Dedlared and pard dunng the year

Equity dmdends on ordinary shares,

Final dividend for 2005 5 0p (2004 5 2p) 9,405 9,735

Intenm for 2006 2 5p (2005 2 5p) 3,921 4,590

13,326 14,325

Proposed for approval at AGM {not recogrised as a fabiity as at 31 December)
Equity dmidends on ordinary shares
Final dwidend for 2006 5 0p (2005 50p) 7,856 9,400
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12 Property, ptant and equipment

Fedewras,

Freehokd Short fittngys,

land and leasehoid equipment

buildings mproverments  and vehicles Total

£'000 £000 £000 £000

Cost
At 1 January 2005 66,568 14,372 81,598 162,538
Additions - 1,211 6,626 7837
Disposals {265) {1,013 (11,534) (12813
Foreign currency adustment - (553) (1,052 (1.605)
At 31 December 2005 66,303 14,017 75638 155,068
Addtions 839 971 19,075 20,885
Disposals - (5,579) 3790y (19,369
Foreign currency adpstrment - {362 {637} (999)
At 31 December 2006 67,142 9,047 B0,286 156475
Depreciation and impairment
At 1 January 2005 12,838 5,491 54,295 72,624
Provided during the year 2977 2332 10,226 15,535
Disposals (266) {967) (11,3738} (12,606
Forexgn currency adustment - (338) (858} (1,196)
At 31 December 2005 15,549 6,518 52,290 74,357
Provided dunng the year 2,706 1,947 0,932 14,585
Disposals - (5430 (13562 (18,992
Imparment loss - - 2492 2492
Foreign currency adustment - {262 679 (841)
At 31 Decernber 2006 18,255 2,773 50,573 71,601
Net book value
At 31 December 2006 48,887 6,214 29713 84,874
At 31 December 2005 50,754 7499 23,348 81,601
At 1 January 2005 53,730 8,881 27303 89,914

Included in the figures above are the following amounts relating o leased assets which are used to satisfy specific customer contracts

Focures, fittngs, equpment and vehcles
2006

2005
£000 £000
Cost
AL 1 January 2006 978 206
Additions 13,381 772
Disposals (225) =
At 31 December 2006 14,134 978
Accumulated depreciation and impairment
At 1 January 2006 377 51
Charge for year 1,561 326
Disposals {101) -
At 31 December 2006 1,837 a7
Net carrying amount 12,207 601
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13 Intangible assets

Other
Goodwil Software mas;: Total
£000 £000 £'000 £'000

Cost
At 1 January 2005 4,755 10,347 - 15,102
Addtions - 3,385 - 3,385
Disposals - {1,607} - (1,607)
Foreign currency adjustment - 64} - 64
At 31 December 2005 4,755 12,061 - 16,816
Addtions - 2,227 272 2499
Disposals - {2,050 - {2,050
Foreign currency adustment - (147} - {147)
Al 31 December 2006 4,755 12,091 272 17,118
Amortisation and impairment
At 1 January 2005 - 7179 - 7,179
Charged during the year - 1,784 - 1,784
Disposals - {1,607} - {1.607)
Foreign currency adjustment - 33} - 33
At 31 December 2005 - 7323 - 7,323
Charged duning the year - 1,861 46 1,907
Disposals - 2.041) - {2,041)
Imparment loss - 4 - 114
Foreign currency adustment - {130} - (130
At 31 December 2006 - mz7 48 7173
Net book value
At 31 December 2006 4,755 4,964 226 9,945
At 31 Decermnber 2005 4755 4738 - 9,493
At 1 January 2005 4755 3,168 - 7923

Other intangible assets relate to customer contracts, as acquired as part of the Group's re-organisation of its holding n HelpByCom, which
are amortised over the Ife of the ndwidual contracts, which equates to an average useful ife of 5 years

14 Impairment testing of goodwill

Goodwill acquired through business combinations has been allecated to the cash-generating units Computacenter (UK) Limited and RD
Trading Limited for imparment testing These are the lowest level of cash-generating units that can be reliably and separately identified

No imparment provision has been required
The recoverable amounts of Computacenter (UK) Limited and RD Trading Limited have been determined based on a value in use

calculation To calculate this, cash flow projections are based on financial budgets approved by serior management covering a five-year
pernod The discount rate apphied to cash flow projections s 12 0% (2004 8 0%6)

Total Total
2006 2005
£1000 £000

Camying amount of goodwil

Computacenter (UK} Lid 3,920 3,920

RD Tradng Limted 835 835

4,755 4,755

Key assumptions used in the value in use calculation for both Computacenter (UK) Limited and RD Trading Limited for 3t December 2006
and 31 December 2005 are

* budgeted revenue - the basis used to determine the value assigned to the budgeted revenue 18 long-run market growth forecasts
* budgeted gross margins — the basis used to determine the value assigned to the budgeted gross margins i1 the average gross margins
achieved in the year mmediately before the budgeted year, adjusted for expected long-run markel pricing trends
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15 Investments

2006 205
£000 £000
Investment n associate - 288

a} Investment in asscciate

Duning the year the Group disposed of ts 43% interest n HelpByCom GrmbH to Sellbytel Communication Group GmbH for a consideration
of £364,000 {€540,000) As part of the transaction Computacenter purchased certain of HelpByCom's intangible assets from Sellbytel for a
consideration of £272,000 {€404,000) The date of economic transfer for the disposal was 1 January 2006 and as a consequence the
Group 1s not entrtled to share in the profits of HelpByCom for 2006

b} Investment in subsidianes
Details of the investments in which the Group holds 20% or more of the nominal value of ordinary share capital are as follows

Country of % equity nterest
Name NCOMPOration Natura of busness 2008 2005
Computacenter (UK) Limited England IT Infrastructure services 100% 100%
Computacenter France SA France IT Infrastructure services 100% 100%
Computacenter Holdng GrmbH Germary IT Infrastructure services 100% 100%
Computacenter GmbH Germany IT Infrastructure services 100% 100%
CC Managed Services GmbH Germany IT Infrastructure senices 100% 100%
Computacenter NV/SA Belgium IT infrastructure services 100% 100%
RD Trading Limnited England IT Asset Management 100%* 100%
Computacenter PSF SA Luxernbourg {T Infrastructure services 100% 100%
Computacenter Solutions SA Luxernbourg IT Infrastructure services 100%**  100%
Comprtacenter USA USA iT infrastructure services 100%* -
Computacenter Services (lbena} SLU Span International Call Centre Services 100%* -

* Includes indirect holdings of 100% wvia Computacenter (UK} Limited
** Includes indrract holdings of 89% wia Cormputacenter PSF SA

Computacenter plc 1s the ultimate parent entity of the Group
Computacenter USA was incorporated during the year in order to fulfil certan customer contracts
Computacenter Senices (ibena) SLU was ncorporated dunng the year to enable the Group to expand its ntemational service desk operations

16 Inventories

2006 2005

£'000 £000

Goods held for sale 94,586 100,233
17 Trade and other receivables

2006 2005

£000 £000

Trade recenables 426,113 381645

Amount due from associate - 25

Other debtors 1,206 1,297

Other related parties - 3

427,319 382970

For terms and conditions relating to related party recevables, refer to note 28

Trade recenables are non-interest bearing and are generally on 30 to 90 day terms
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18 Cash and short-term deposits

2006 2005

£'000 £000

Cash at bank and n hand 17,882 164,797
Short-term deposits 60,000 -

77882 164,797

Cash at bank and In hand earns interest at floating rates based on dally bank deposit rates Short-term deposts are made for varying
periods of between one day and three months depending on the mmediate cash requirements of the Group, and earn interest at the
respectiva short-term deposit rates The farr value of cash and cash eguivalents 1s £77,882,000 (2005 £164,797,000)

At 31 December 2006, the Group had avariable £10,000,000 {2005 £9,100,000) of undrawn commutted borrowang facilities in respect
of which all conditions precedent had been met In addition the Group has £79,000,000 (2005 £59,200,000} of overdraft facilities

For the purposes of the consoldated cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents compnse the following at 31 December

2006 2005

£000 £'000

Cash at bank and i hand 17,882 164,797
Short-term deposts 60,000 -
Bank overdrafts (note 20} {18,800) (31,886

58,982 132911

19 Trade and other payables

2006 2005

£'000 £000

Trade payables 195173 197,141
Amount due to associate - 79
Other payables 120,673 118,736
Other related partes - 41

315,848 3158997

Terms and condibons of the above financial kabities
For terms and conditions relating to related parties, refer to note 28
Trade payables are non-interest bearing and are normally settled on net morithly terms

Other payables, which principally relate to other taxes, social secunty costs and accruals, are non-interest bearing and have an average
term of three to six months

20 Financial habihties

2008 2005
£°000 £000
Current
Bank koans - 326
Bank overdrafts 18,900 31,886
Cther loans 4,443 -
Factor financing 29,549 31,542
Current cbhgatons under finance leases (note 21) 2,844 377
55,736 64,131
Non-current
Other loans 2,803 -
Non-current obligations under finance leases {note 21) 8,559 275
11,362 275
Bank loan

The bank ioan comprsed an amount of £326,000 relating to the Executive Share Option Scheme The loan bore nterest at LIBOR +1 56%

Bank overdrafts
The bank overdrafts are unsecured and are subject to annual review
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20 Financial habihties continued

Finance leases
The finance leases are only secured on the assets that they finance These assets are used to satisfy specific customer contracts

Other loans
The other loans are borrowings to finance assets leased to customers on operating leases

Other loans comprise the following

2006 2005
£'000 £'000

£1,221,615 nterest free loan 2007 338 -
£429,145 fixed rate loan 2007 324 -
£1,358,724 fixed rate loan 2008 719 -
£2,634,625 fixed rate loan 2008 1,911 -
£1,132,534 fied rate lcan 2008 821 -
£2 441,280 interest fres loan 2008 732 -
£2,000,000 niterest free loan 2008 2,000 -
£1,229,006 fixed rate koan 2009 401 -
7,246 -

Less. current instalments due on other loans 4,443 -
2,803 -

£1,221,615 interest free loan
This unsecured loan Is repayable in one instalment of £601,390 and eleven equal monthly nstalments concluding on 30/06/07 The loan
Is Interest free

£429,145 fixed rata loan
This unsecured loan is repayable over four equal quarterly nstaliments concluding on 1/9/07 The loan bears nterest at 7 35%

£1,358,724 fixed rate loan
This unsecured loan I1s repayable in one instalment of £640,006 plus eight quarterly payments ending on 1/10/08 The loan bears
interest at 2 48%

£2 634,625 fixed rate loan
This unsecured loan Is repayable In one instalment of £723,603 plus eight quarterly payments concluding on 1/12/08 The loan bears
interest at 511%

£1,132,534 fixad rate loan
This unsecured loan 1s repayable in one instalment of £311,065 plus exight quarterty payments concluding on 1/12/08 The loan bears
interast at 5 09%

£2,441,280 interest freo loan
This unsecured loan 1s repayable in one annual instalment of £1,708,896 on 31/12/06 followed by one annual payment of £732,384 on
1/1/08 The loan 1s nterest free

£2,000,000 interest free loan
This unsecured loan 1s repayable in one payment of £1,400,000 on 1/4/07 and one payment of £600,000 on 1/1/08 The loan i1s nterest free

£1,220,096 fixed rate loan
Thus unsecured loan 1s repayable in one nstalment of £677,906 plus eleven quarterly payments concluding on 30/06/08 The loan bears
mterest at 2 76%
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20 Financial labihties continued

The table below summarnses the matunty profile of these loans

2006 2005
£000 £'000

Not later than one year 4,443 -
After one year but not more than five years 2,803 -
7,246 -

Factor financing

Factor financing 1s in respect of trade debts factored without recourse which represents a proportion of the debts of the Group's French
subsidiary Under the terms of the arrangement certain trade debts are sold to the factor who in turn advances cash payments in relation to
these debts Interest 1s charged on these amounts on a dally basis at a rate of ECB base rate +0 5% The Group 1s not obliged {and does
not intend) to support any losses ansing from the assigned debts against which the cash has been advanced In the event of default in
paymenit of a debtor, the providers of finance seek repayment of cash advanced only from the remander of the cash pool of debts in which
they hold an interest Repayment is not required from the Group in any other way

21 Obhgations under leases

a) Finance lease commitments

The Group has finance leases for various tems of plant and machinery, these leases have no terms of renewal or purchase options and
escalation clauses Future minimum lease payments under finance leases together with the present value of the net minimum lease
payments are as follows

2006 2005

Minimum Present value Mrumum  Present value
payments of payments payments  of payments
£000

£'000 £'000 £000
Within one year 3,501 2,844 452 377
After one year but not more than five years 10,593 8,559 330 275
Present valug of minimum lease payments 14,094 11,403 782 852

b) Operating lease commitments where the Group 1s lessee
The Group has entered into commercial leases on certan properties, motor vehicles and tems of small machinery There are no restrictions
placed upon the Group by entering into these leases

Future commitments payable under non-canceliable operating leases as at 31 December are as follows

2008 2005
£'000 £000
Not later than one year 36,324 35,920
After one year but not more than five years 49,159 53,624
More than five years 24,005 28,810

108488 118254

¢} Operating lease receivables where the Group 15 lessor
Dunng the year the Group entered into commercial leases with customers on certain tems of machinery

Future amounts recenvable by the Group under the non-cancellable operating leases as at 3t December are as follows

2006 2005

£'000 £'000

Not later than one year 8,54 -
After one year but not more than five years 12,723 -
21,264 -

‘The amounts recenvable are directly related to the finance lease obligations and other loans of £18,649,000 detaled in notes 20 and 21b
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22 Provisions

Proparty
provsions  Deferred tax Total
£000 £000 £1000
At 1 January 2008 16,197 1,393 17,590
Ansing dunng the year 1827 51 1,878
Utlised {(3.011) (195} (3,206)
Movernent in discount rate 142 - 142
Exchange adjustment (184) - (184)
At 31 December 2006 14,971 1,249 16,220
Current 2006 2132 - 2132
Non-current 2006 12,838 1,249 14,088

14,971 1,249 16,220

Current 2005 2,190 - 2190
Non-current 2005 14,007 1,383 15,400
16,197 1,393 17,590

Property provisions

Assumptions used to calculate the property provisions are based on the market value of the rental charges plus any contractual diapidation
expenses on empty properties and the Directors’ best estimates of the likely tme before the relevant leases can be reassigned or sublet,
which ranges between 1 year and 10 years The prowisions in relation to the UK properties are discounted at a rate based upon the Bank
of England base rate Those in respect of the European operations are discounted at a rate based on Euribor

23 Financial instruments
An explanation of the Group's financial nstrurment risk management obyectives, policies and strategies are set out iIn the Finance Director's
Review on pages 2010 23

Interest rate nsk
The following table sets out the camang amount, by maturtty, of the Group’s financial nstruments that are exposed to nterest rate nsk

Within More thary
Functional 1 year 1-2 years 2-Sgears 3-4 years 4—5ypam 5years Total
cumency £000 £'000 000 £1000 £'000 £ 000 £1000
Year ended 31 December 2006
Fixed rate
Cash and short-term deposits Sterling 60,000 - - - - - 60,000
Other ioans Sterling {1,768) {1.937) (133 - - - (3,838
Finance leases Steriing/Euro (2,784) 2.626) (2.526) {1,.921) (1,486) - (11,343
Floating rate
Cash and short-term deposits Sterlng 15414 - - - - - 15414
Cash and short-term deposits Dollar 1,141 - - - - - 14
Cash and short-term deposits Euro 478 - - - - - 478
17,033 - - - - - 17,033
Forward currency contracts Euro/Dollar 57 - 54 - - - m
Bank overdrafi Euro {18,900 - - - - - {18,800
Factor fnancng Euro  (29,549) - - - - - 29549
Property provisions Sterfing/Euro 2132 {2,302 {1,688} (1.626) {1,531) (5,689} (14,971)
Interest free
Cash and short-term deposds Sterbing 8 - - - - - 8
Cash and short-term deposits Dollar 418 - - - - - 418
Cash and short-term deposits Euro 423 - - - - - 423
849 - - - - - 849
Cther foans Stering (2675 {733) - - - - {3408
Finance leases Sterfing 60 - - - - - 60)

Other non-current fiabiliies Sterfng - 17 - - — - @17)
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23 Financial instruments continued

Withn More than

Funcoonal 1 year -2 years 2-3years 34 years 4-5years S years Total

currency £000 £000 £'000 £'000 £000 £'000 £000
Year ended 31 December 2005
Fived rate
Finance leases Sterling {257) {258) - - - - {515}
Floating rate
Cash and short-term deposits Stering 156,856 - - - - - 156,856
Cash and short-term deposits Dollar 1,704 - - - - - 1,794
Cash and short-term deposits Euro 5994 - - - - - 5,894
164,644 - - - - - 164,644
Forward currency contracts Eura/Dollar 191 - - - - - il
Bank loan Stering (326) - - - - - (326)
Bank overdraft Euro (31,886) - - - - - {31,886)
Factor finanang Euro {31,542 - - - - - (31,542
Property provisions Stering/Euro (2.329) (1,439) {1,397) {1,589) (1.633) {7,800) {16,197)
Interest free
Cash and short-term deposits Sterling 54 - - - - - 54
Cash and short-term depostts Euro 49 - - - - - 49
103 - - - - - 103

Finance leases Sterling (120 (a7 - - - - (137}
Other non-curment Babities Stertng - 371) - - - - (371}

Interest on financial nstruments classified as ficating rate 1s repnced at mtervals of less than one yaar The mterest on financial nstruments
classiiied as fixed rate 15 fixed until the matunty of the mstrurnent The other financial nstruments of the Group that are not ncluded in the
above tables are non-interest beanng and are therefore not subject to interest rate risk

The sterling floating rate assets and liabilities are based on the three month LIBOR rate The euro fioating rate assets and habilires are based
on the overnight Euribor rate

Credit nsk
There are no significant concentratrons of credi nsk within the Group

Fair values
The camying value of the Group's short-term recevables and payables is a reasonable approsimation of thew far values  The fair vatue of all
other financial nstruments carned within the Group's financial statements equates to ther carmying amount
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23 Financial \nstruments continued

Hedging activities - fair value hedges

At 31 December 2006 and 20085, the Group held five foreign exchange contracts designated as hedges of an inter-company loan and future
expected payments to suppliers The exchange contracts are being used to reduce the exposure to foreign exchange nsk The terms of

these contracts are detaled below

31 December 2006

Buy Sel Value of Matunty Conact
curency currency contracts dates rates
UK
Euros Sterling €10,158,301 Sept 07- Jan 08 13661437
Dottars Stering $3,000,000 Jan 2007 1969-1969
Germany
Dollars Euros $17,100,000 Jan 2007 1316-1334
31 December 2005
Buy Sed value of Maturty Contract
curTency cumency contracls dates rates
Euros Sterling €14,201,699 Jan-Sept 2006 1437-1641
Germary
Dollars Eurcs $3,300,000 Jan 2006 1191-1200
24 Authorised and 1ssued capital and reserves
2006 2005
Authonsed £'000 £'000
Crdinary shares of 6p each 25,000 -
Ordinary shares of 5p each - 25000
B8 shares of 39p each 75,000 -
100,000 25,000
Ordinary shares
Issued and fully pard
Sporcnary  Spordnary 39pB
shares shares shares
No 000's No 000s No '000s £000
At 1 January 2005 189,790 - - 9489
Issued during the year for cash on exercise of share options 317 - - 16
At 31 December 2005 190,107 - - 9,506
Issued dunng the year for cash on exercise of share options 769 451 - 66
Bonus issue - - 190,876 -
Share redemption - - {190.876) -
Share consolidation (190,876 159,063 - -
At 21 December 2008 - 159,514 - 9,571

The holders of A ordinary shares are entitfed to recerve dwdends from time to time and are entitled to one vote per share at the general meetings
of the Company On a winding-up of the Comparty holders of A ordinary shares may be entrtled to the residual assets of the Company

The B shares were Issued as a bonus ssue on 3 July 2006 on the basis of 1 B share for gvery 1 Ordinary Share held as at 30 June 2006
The holders of B shares are not entdled to any nght of participation in the profits of the Company On a winding-up of the Company the
halders of B shares have a nght to recenve, in preference to payments to Ordinary shareholders, the repayment of the nominal capital pawd

up or credited as pad up on the B shares held by them

The B shares carry no voting nghts at General Meetings The holders of B shares are not entitled to receve nolics of, attend or speak at any
such meeting, unless the business of the meeting INcludes the consideration of a resclution for the waindng-up of the Company in which case
hoiders of B shares shall have the nght to attend the General Meeting and shall be entitied to speak and vote only on any such resolubon

On July 4 2006 all B shares in 1ssue were redeemed at par

As aresult of the 5 for 6 consolidatron and 1ssue of B shares on 3 July 2006, 190,876,000 ordinary shares of 5p became 159,063,000

ordinary shares of 8p

The Company has two share opticn schemes under which options to subscnibe for the Company’s shares have been granted to certan

executves and senior employees (note 25)
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements contnued

24 Authorised and 1ssued capital and reserves continued

Share premium

£000
At 1 January 2005 73,920
Shares ssued 760
At 31 December 2005 74,680
Shares 1ssued 2,317
Bonus share Issug {74,442
Expenses on share issue (308)
At 31 December 2006 2,247

The share premium account s used to record the aggregate amount or value of premiums pad when the Company’s shares are issued/
redeerned at a prermium

Capital redemption reserve

£'000
At 1 January and 31 December 2005 100
Redempiion of B shares 74 442
At 3t December 2006 74,542

The capital redemption reserve 1s used to maintain the Company's capital followng the purchase and cancellation of its own shares

Own shares held
Own shares held comprse the following

1)) Computacenter Employee Share Ownership Plan

Shares in the parent undertaking comprise 1,189,201 (2005 1,427,042) S5p ordinary shares of Computacenter plc purchased by the
Computacenter Employee Share Ownership Plan (‘the Plan’) The number of shares held represents 0 7% of the Company’s issued
share capital

None of these shares were awarded to executives of the Company under the Computacenter (UK) Lmrted Cash Bonus and Share Pian
Options previously awarded are to be held on behalf of employees and former employees of Computacenter (UK) Limited and ther
dependants, excluding Jersey residents The distnbution of these shares 1s dependant upon the trustee holding thern on the employees’
behalf for a restnctve penod of three years

Since 31 December 2002 the defintion of beneficianes under the ESOP Trust has been expanded to include employees who have been
awarded options to acquire ordinary shares of 6p each in Computacenter plc under the other employee share plans of the Computacenter
Group, namely the Computacenter Services Group plc Approved Executive Share Option Plan, the Computacenter Employee Share Option
Scheme 1998, the Computacenter Services Group pic Unapproved Executve Share Option Scheme, the Computacenter Performance
Related Share Option Scherne 1998, the Computacenter Sharesave Plus Scheme and any future smitar share ownership schemes Al
costs incurred by the Plan are settled directly by Computacenter (UK) Limited and charged n the accounts as incurred

The Plan Trustees have waved the dvidends recervable n respect of 1,189,201 shares that it owns which are all unallocated shares

1) Computacenter Qualifying Employee Share Trust (‘the QUEST)

The total shares held are 761,548 (2005 780,966) All of these shares will continue to be held by the Quest untl such time as the Sharesave
options granted aganst them are exercised The market value of these shares at 31 December 2006 was £2,045,000 The Quest Trustees
have waved dvidends in respect of all of these shares Dunng the year the Quest used the proceeds from UK sharesave option exercises
to subscnbe for 334,654 new 6p ordinary shares and 262,018 new &5p ordinary shares

1) Computacenter Trustees Lirmited

During the year no new awards of share aflocations were made under the Computacenter Bonus Plus Share Plan As at the year end date
the total number of shares held by Computacenter Trustees Limited was 381,534 (2005 457,841), all of which are unallocated shares
Owvidends are warved in respect of unallocated shares

Foreign currency translation reserve

£1000
At 1 January 2005 (911}
Currency translaton differences (846)
At 31 December 2005 (1,757}
Cumrency translation differences {698)
At 31 Decemnber 2006 {2.455)

The forexgn currency translation reserve 1s used to record exchange differences ansng from the translation of the financial statements of foreign
subsichanies Differences ansing pror to the transiion to IFRS e 1 January 2004) have not been recognised under the provisions of IFRS 1
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25 Share based payments

Executive share option scheme

Duning the year, options were exercised with respect to 506,200 5p ordinary shares at a nominal value of £25,310 (2005 £1,430)and at
an aggregate premium of £6885,540 (2005 £54,980) Subsequent to the Capital Reorgarisation options in respect of 123,000 6p ordinary
shares, at a nominal value of £7,380 and an aggregate premium of £213,420, were exercised The total nominal value of options exercised
during the year was £32,690 (2005 £1,430} and the total aggregate premium was £878,960 (2005 £54,980)

Under the Computacenter Employee Share Option Scheme 1998 and the Computacenter Services Group Executive Share Scheme,
options In respect of 2,714,121 shares lapsed and options over 2,819,600 shares were granted

The numbers of shares under options cutstanding at the year end comprise

2006 2005

Exercise Number Number

Date of grant Exercisable between prce outstanding outstanding
09/04/1996 09/04/1999 — 08/04/2006 41 25p - 150,000
31/0711997 31/07/2000 — 30/07/2007 1680 00p 129,900 516,100
16/03/1998 16/03/2001 — 15403/2008 300 00p 286,500 398,900
01/04/1999 01/04/2002 - 31/03/2009 565 00p 61,240 88,144
05/05/1999 05/05/2002 — 04/05/2009 565 00p 141,758 203,696
24/08/1999 24/08/2002 — 23/08/2008 565 00p - 8,849
24/08/1999 24/08/2003 - 23/08/2009 565 00p 13,724 13,724
27/08/2000 27/09/2003 - 26/06/2010 38000p 371,474 864,806
27/08/2000 27/09/2004 - 26/09/2010 380 00p 33,333 223,332
27/09/2000 27/03/2005 - 26/09/2010 38000p 33,333 223,332
20/03/2001 20/03/2004 — 19/03/2011 33350p 150,000 158,905
20/03/2001 20/03/2005 — 19/03/2011 333 50p 150,000 150,000
20/03/2001 20/03/2006 — 19/03/2011 33350p 200,000 200,000
19/09/2001 19/09/2004 — 18/09/2011 245 00p 100,000 100,000
18/09/2001 19/09/2005 — 18/09/2011 24500p 50,000 50,000
19/09/2001 19/09/2006 - 18/09/2011 245 00p 50,000 50,000
10/04/2002 10/04/2005 - 03/04/2012 322 00p 352,316 720,816
10/04/2002 10/04/2005 - 09/04/2012 33100p 45,000 60,000
1AY2002 11/10/2005 - 10/10/2012 22000p - 85,000
21/03/2003 21/03/2006 - 20/03/2013 266 50p 564,000 1,133,000
02/04/2004 02/04/2007 - 01/04/2014 424 Q0p 523,000 1,136,000
14/10/2004 14/10/2007 — 13/10/2014 311 80p - 64,205
24/10/2006 24/10/2009 - 23/10/2016 250 Q0p 2,819,600 -

6,075,178 6,598,899

Computacenter Performance Related Share Option Scheme

Under the Computacenter Performance Related Share Option scheme, options granted will be subject 1o certain performance conditions
as described i the Directors’ Remuneration Report

During the year 84,708 options lapsed No options were granted during the course of the year

At 31 Decemnber 2006 the number of shares under outstanding options were as follows

2006 2005

Exercse Number Number

Date of grant Exercrsable between prce outstanding outstanding
20/03/2001 20/03/2004 - 19/03/2011 333 50p - 84,708
10/04/2002 10/04/2005 - 0/04/2012 322 00p 280,666 280,666
21/03/2003 21/03/2006 - 20/03/2013 266 50p 433,863 433,863
2103/2003 21/03/2007 - 2000372013 266 50p 200,000 200,000
02/04/2004 02/04/2007 - 01/04/2014 424 00p 283,017 283,017

1,197,546 1,282,254
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25 Share based payments continued

The followang table llustrates the number (No } and weighted average exercise prices (WAEP) of share options for the executive share option
scheme and the performance related share option scheme

2006 2006 2005 2005
No WAEP No. WAEP
Executve share option scheme
Qutstanding at the beginning of the year’ 6,598,899 £3.30 7,283,802 £330
Granted durng the year 2,819,600 £2.50 - -
Forfetted dunng the year {2,714,121) £3.61 (656,303 £368
Exercised dunng the year (629,200) £1.45°  (28,600) £197?
Outstanding at the end of the year 6,075,178 £2.99 6,598,899 £330
Exercisable at the end of the year 2,732,578 £3.26 4015694 £322
Notes

1 Included withan this batance are opticns over 2 168 000 (2005 4 266 000) shares that have not been recognised in accordance with IFRS 2 as the optons wers granted o or befors
7 Novermber 2002 These optons have not been subsequently modified and therefore do not need to be accountad for 1n accordance with IFRS 2

2 The weghted average share price at the data of axercise for the oplions exercised 15 £3 00

3 The weighted average share price at the ciate of exeroise for the options exercised 1s £2 60

The weighted average remaining contractual ife for the share ophons outstanding as at 31 December 2006 15 70 years (2005 5 5 years)

2006 2006 2005 2005
No. WAEP No WAEP

Computacenter performance related share option schema
Outstanding at the begnning of the year! 1,282,254 £318 1,282,264 £318
Granted dunng the year - - - -
Forfeted dunng the vear {64,708) £3.34 - -
Exerased dunng the year - - - -
Cutstandng at the end of the year 1,197,546 £317 1,282,254 £318
Exercisable at the end of the year 280,666 £$322 365374 £325

Notas
1 Included within this balance are options over 281 000 (2005 365 000) shares that have nct been recognised in accordance with IFRS 2 as the options were granted on or before
7 November 2002 These options have not been subsaquently modified and thersfore do not need to be accounted for in accordance with IFRS 2

The weighted average remaning contractual ife for the share options outstanding as at 31 December 2006 15 6 2 years (2005 71 years)
Computacenter LTIP performance share plan

Dunng the year the Company ntroduced the Computacenter LTIP performance share plan as its man long-term incentwe scheme for
senior employees Shares granted will be subject to certain performance conditions as descnbed in the Directors” Remuneration Report
During the year 1,571,604 shares were awarded and 37,666 lapsed

At 31 December 2006 the number of shares outstanding was as follows

Nurnpet

Date of grant Matuntydate  Shareprce outstanding
12/04/2006 010472008 254 00p 1,392,858
10/05/2006 01/04/2009 25400p 141,080
1,533,938

Computacenter Sharesave Scheme

The Company operates a Sharesave Scheme which 15 available to all employees and fult tme Executve Directors of the Company and s
subsidiaries who have worked ior a qualfying penod All options granted to UK employees under this scheme are satisfied at exercise by
way of a transfer of shares from the Computacenter Qualifying Employee Share Trust In the case of options granted to employees based
overseas, all option exercises are satisfied by new share issues Duning 2006, options over 4,455 shares were exercised by overseas
employess and satisfied by new issue shares The far value of the options that were granted over the penod to 31 Decernber 2006 1s
£9,000 and 1s recognised as an expense i the ncome statement for the period (2005 £14,000)
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25 Share based payments continued

Under the scheme the following options have been granted and are outstanding at the year end

2006 2005
Number Nurnber
Date of Grant Exercisable between Share pnce outstanding outstanding
September 2000 01/12/2005 - 31/05/20086 435 00p - 387
January 2001 01/02/2006 - 31/07/2006 350 00p 11,549 57,102
October 2001 011272006 - 31/05/2007 18500p 125,038 416,394
October 2002 01/12/2005 - 31/05/2006 22000p - 451955
Cctober 2002 01/12/2007 - 31/05/2008 22000p 374,430 40,111
October 2002 01122007 — 31/05/2008 225 00p 30,518 33,578
October 2003 01/12/2006 - 31/05/2007 305 00p 264,312 307,589
October 2003 01/12/2008 — 31/05/2009 305 00p 136,986 158,889
October 2003 01/12/2008 - 31/05/2009 41700p 9,165 9,165
October 2004 01/12/2007 — 31/05/2008 33500p 226,246 283,924
October 2004 01/12/2008 - 31/05/2009 316 00p 11,260 12,143
October 2004 01/12/2009 — 31/05/2010 33500p 107,478 128,934
October 2005 0112/2008 - 31/05/2008 222 00p 671,916 821,859
October 2005 01/12/2010 - 31/05/2011 222 00p 183,717 217941
October 2006 01/12/2009 - 31/06/2010 254 00p 295,275 -
OCctober 2006 011272011 - 31/06/2012 254 00p 121,779 -
2,569,669 3,309,941
The following table lustrates the No and WAEP of share options for the Sharesave scheme
2006 2006 2005 2005
No. WAEP No WAEP
Sharesave scheme
Qutstanding at the begnning of the year 3,309,941 £2.58 3603417 £276
Granted durng the year 417,054 £2.54 1,039,800 222
Forferted duning the year (685,190) £2.59 (897,273) £328
Exercised dunng the year {472,136} £1.99* (436,003} £193
QOutstanding at the end of the year 2,569,669 £269 3,309,941 £258
Exercisable at the end of the year 400,899 £3.28 452,342 £220

Notes

1 Included within this balance are options over 542 000 (2005 1360 527) shares that have nat been recognised in accordanca with IFRS 2 as the options were granted on or before

7 November 2002 Thase options have not been subsaquently madified and therefora do not need to be accounted for n accordance with IFRS 2
2 The weghted average share pnce at the date of exercise for the options exercised 1s £2 72
3 The weighted average share price at the data of exercise for the options exercised 15 £2 58

The far vatue of the executive share option scheme, the performance related share option scheme and Sharesave Scheme plans are
estimated as at the date of grant using the Black-Scholes valuation mode!l The following table gives the assumptions made durning the year

ended 31 December 2006 and 31 December 2005

Share options granted to key executives

Grant of Grantof
Nature of the arrangement share options share options
Date of grant 24 October 06 24 October 06
Number of nstruments granted 1,119,600 1,700,000
Exercise pnce £2 50 £250
Share pnce at date of grant £250 £250
Contractual Irfe fyears) 10 10
Three years of sennce

and growth n EPS of Three year
Vestng condibons RP! phus 5% senace penod
Expected volatility 3840% 3540%
Expected option Iife at grant date (years) 45 45
Risk-free interest rate 485% 485%
Dmdend yeld 300% 300%
Faur value per granted instrument determined at grant date 075 2075
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25 Share based payments continued

Save as you earn scheme

SAYE SAYE SAYE SAYE

Nature of the arrangement scheme scheme scheme scherma

Date of grant 28 October 05 28 October 05 30 October 06 30 October 06

Number of nstruments granted 821,859 217941 295,721 121,779

Exercise pnce £222 £222 £254 £254

Share pnce at date of grant £201 £201 £255 £255

Contractual Ife fyears) 3 5 3 5

Three year Frveyear Threa year Fve year

senace penod senvica period senaca perod sarvice panod

and savings and savings and savings and sanngs

Vestng condibons requirement requiremnent recuIremeant requrement

Expected volatity 38 30% 38 30% 3840% 38 40%

Expected option ife at grant date (years) 300 500 300 500

Risk-free nterest rate 418% 418% 475% 475%

Dmdend yiekd 373% 373% 294% 294%
Far value per granted instrument determined

at grant date 204 £0 51 £066 £08o0

The expected life of the options 1s based on histonical data and 1s not necessanly ndicatve of exercige patterns that may occur

The expectad volatility reflects the assumption that the recent histonical volatility 1s incicative of future trends, which may also not necessarily
be the actual outcome

No other features of options grant were incorporated into the measurement of far value

26 Capital commitments

At 31 December 2006 and 31 December 2005, all future contracted Group capital expenditure had been prowided for
27 Pensions and other post-employment benefit plans

The Group has a defined contnbution pension plan, covenng substantially all of ts employees in the UK The amount recognised as an
expense for this plan 1s detailed in note 6

28 Retated party transactions

Dunng the year the Group entered into transactions, in the ordinary course of business, with related partres Transactions entered into are as
descnbed below

Biomni provides the Computacenter e-procurerment system used by many of Computacenter’s major customers An annual fee has been
agreed on a commercial basis for use of the software for each installabon Total fees pad in the year to Biomni amounted to £618,000
{2005 £342,000) Both PJ Ogden and PW Hulme are directors of and have a material interest in Biomni Limited

Dunng the year, HelpByCorn supplied services to the Group in the normal course of business totalling £nil (2005 £4,267,000)

Terms and conditions of transactions with related parties

Sales to and purchases from related parties are made on terms equivalent to those that prevail in amm’s length transactions  Qutstanding
balances at the year end are unsecured and settlement occurs in cash There have been no guarantees provided or receved for any
related party recevables The Group has not recogrused any prawision for doubtful debts relating to amounts owed by related parties
This assessment 15 undertaken each financial year through examiing the financial position of the related party and the market n which
the related party operates

Compensation of key management personnel (including Directors)
Please refer to the mformation given n the Directors’ rermuneration table in the Drectors’ Remuneration Report on page 32 for details of
compensation given to the Group’s key management personnel There are no other key management personnel

29 Post balance sheet event

On 4 January 2007, Computacenter plc completed the acquisiton of Digica Group from Bnidgepoint Capital, Lyceum Caprtal (through

its nvesiment n Fox IT) and management shareholders The consideration paid for Digica amounted to £15 9 mullion, n addition to which
Computacenter settled assumed debt of £12 1 million, both of which were satisfied from cash reserves The assessment of the far value
of assets acquired 1s In progress and yel to be finaksed
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Statement of Directors’ responsibilities in relation to the Parent Company financial statements

The Directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report and the financial statements in accordance with applicable law and United
Kingdorn Generally Accepted Accounting Practce

Company law requires the Directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year, which give a true and fair view of the state of
affars of the Company, and of the profit or loss of the Company for that penod In prepanng those financial statements, the Directors are
required to

* select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently,

* make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent,

* siate whether applicable accounting standards have been followed, subject to any material departures disclosed and explaned n the
financial statements, and

+ prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it 18 nappropriate to presume that the Company will continue In
business

The Drectors are responsible for keeping proper accounting records which disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial
position of the Company, and to enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 1985 They are also
responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Company and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud
and other iregutarties
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Independent auditors’ report to the shareholders of Computacenter plc

We have audited the Parent Company financial statements of
Computacenter plc for the year ended 31 December 2006 which
compnse the Balance Sheet and the related notes 1 to 13 These
Parent Company financial statements have been prepared under
the accounting policies set out therein We have also audited the
information in the Drectors’ Remuneration Report that 1s described
as having been audited

We have reported separately on the Group financial statements of
Computacenter plc for the year ended 31 Decernber 2006

This report 15 made solely to the Company's members, as a body, In
accordance with Section 235 of the Companies Act 1985 Qur audit
work has been undertaken so that we might siate to the Company's
members those matters we are required to state to them in an
auditors’ report and for no other purpose To the fullest extent
permitted by law, we do not accept or assumae responsibiity to
anyone other than the Company and the Company's members as a
body, for our audrt work, for this report, or for the opinions we have
formed

Respective responsibilities of Directors and auditors

The Drectors’ responsibiliies for preparing the Annual Report, the
Drrectors’ Remuneration Report and the Parent Company financial
statements In accordance with applicable United Kingdom law and
Accounting Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice) are set out in the Statement of Directors’
Responsibiities

Cur responsibility 1s to audit the Parent Company financial statements
and the part of the Directors’ Remuneration Report to be audited in
accordance with relevant legal and regulatory requirements and
internationat Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland)

We report to you our opinicn as to whether the Parent Company
financial statements give a trus and far view and whether the
Parent Company financial statements and the part of the Directors’
Remuneration Report to be audited have been property prepared In
accordance with the Companies Act 1985 We also report to you
whether in our opinion the information given in the Parent Company
Drrectors’ Report 1s consistent with the financial statements

In addition we report to you if, i our epinion, the Company has
not kept proper accounting records, if we have not recerved all
the information and explanattons we require for our audt, or if
information specified by law regarding Directors’ remuneration
and other transactions 1s not disclosed

We read other information contained in the Annual Report and
consider whether it 1s consistent with the audited Parent Company
financial statements The other information compnses only
Charman’s Statement, Chief Executive's Review, Risk Management
Report, Finance Directors Review, Corporate Governance
Staterment, the Directors’ Report and the unaudtted part of the
Drrectors’ Remuneration Report We consider the implications for
our report if we become aware of any apparent misstatements or
matenial nconsistencias with the Parent Company financial
statements Our responsibilities do not extend to any other
information

Basis of audit opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards
on Auditing (UK and ireland) issued by the Auditing Practices Board
An audit ncludes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant
to the amounts and disclosures in the Parent Company financial
statements and the part of the Directors’ Remuneration Report to
be audited It also includes an assessment of the significant
estimates and judgments made by the Directors in the preparation
of the Parent Company financial statements, and of whether the
accounting policies are appropnate to the Company's
crcumstances, consistently applied and adequately disclosed

We planned and performed our audit so as to obtan all the
information and explanations which we considered necessary

In order to provide us with sufficient evidence to give reasonable
assurance that the Parent Company financial statements and the
part of the Diwectors’ Remuneration Report to be audited are free
from matenal misstatement, whether caused by fraud or other
irregulanty or error In forming our opinion we also evaluated the
overall adequacy of the presentation of information in the Parent
Compary financial statements and the part of the Directors’
Remuneration Report to be audited

Opinion
I our opimen

* the Parent Company financial statements give a true and far
view, In accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice, of the state of the Company's affars as
at 31 December 2006,

+ the Parent Company financial statements and the part of the
Directors' Remuneration Report 1o be audited have been properly
prepared In accordance with the Compantes Act 1985, and

* the information given in the Directors” Report 1s conststent with
the Parent Company financial statements

Frnt 7,”1\,%

Ernst & Young LLP
Registered auditor
Luton

12 March 2007
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Company balance sheet
At 31 December 2006
2006 2005
Noto £'000 £000
Fixed assets
Intangible assets a3 144,221 152,721
Tangible assets 4 31,784 33409
Investments 5 144,677 153,287
320,692 339417
Current assets
Debtors 6 91,140 90,727
Cash at bank and n hand a 54
91,148 90,781
Creditors. Amounts faling due within one year 7 (175,054) (180,042
Net current habilities {83,906) (89.261)
Total assets tess current habilities 236,786 250156
Creditors: amounts faling due after more than one year 62,704) (71,704)
Prowvisions for Labilities and charges (1,188} 1,339)
Net assets 172,884 17713
Capntal and reserves
Called up share capital 10 9,571 9,505
Share premium account 10 2,247 74,680
Caprtal redemption reserve 10 74,542 100
Merger reserve 10 55,990 55,990
Profit and loss account 10 30,534 36,838
Shareholders’ funds - equity 172,884 177,113

Approved by the Board on 12 March 2007

Vi ﬂ(ﬂ Moy G

MJ Norris FA Conophy
Cheef Executve Finance Director
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Notes to the Company financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2006

1 Accounting policies

Basis of preparation

The financial statements are prepared under the historical cost
convention and in accordance with applicable United Kingdom
accounting standards

No profit and loss account 15 presented for the Company as
permitted by section 230 of the Companies Act 1985 The profit after
tax for the Company was £79,553,000 (2005 £17,261,000 loss)

The Company has taken the exemption in FRS 1 5{@) and
consequently no cash flow statement 1s presented for the Company

The Compary has taken advantage of the exernption in paragraph
3C of FRS 25 Financial Instrurnents  Disclosure and Presentation
and has not disclosed information required by paragraphs 51 to 95
of that standard, as the Group's consolidated financial statements,
in which the Company is iIncluded, provide equivalent disclosures
for the Group under IAS 32 Financial Instruments Presentation
and Disclosure

Intellectual property

bicences purchased in respect of intellectual property are
capitalised, classified as an intangible asset on the balance sheet
and amortised on a straight-ine basis over the penod of the license

Depreciation of fixed assets

Freehold land 15 not depreciated Depreciation i1s prowvided on afl
other tangible fixed assets at rates caleulated to wiite off the cost,
less estimated residual value, of each asset evenly over s expected
useful ife, as follows
Freehold buldings 50 years

Investments

Foeed asset nvestments are shown at cost less prowision for
mpawrment

Foreign currencies

Transactions in foreign currencies are recorded at the rate rubng

at the date of the transaction Monetary assets and labilities
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rate of
exchange ruling at the balance sheet date, except to the extent that
such assets or habiities are covered by forward exchange contracts
In such cases the contracted rates are used All dfferences are
taken to the profit and loss account

Share-based payment transactions

Employees (includng Executve Directors) of the Group can recewve
remuneration in the form of share-based payment transactions,
whereby employees render services in exchange for shares or
nghts over shares {‘'equity-settled transactions’}

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees 1s measured
by reference to the far value of the award at the date at which they
are granted The far value 1s determined by ulitsing an approprate
valuation model, further details of which are gven in note 25 of the
Group's accounts In vahsng equity-settled transactions, no account
ts taken of any performance conditions, as none of the conditions
set are market-related ones

The cost of equity-settled transactions 1s recognised, together with
a corresponding ncrease in equrty, over the penod in which the
performance and/or service conditions are fulfiled, ending on the
date on which the relevant empiloyees become fully entitled to the
award (‘vesting date’) The cumulative expense recognised for
equity-settled transactions at each reporting date, until the vesting
date, reflects the extent to which the vesting penod has expired and
Directors’ best estmate of the number of equily nstrurments that wall

ultmately vast The mcome statement charge or credt for a penod
represents the movement in cumulative expense recognised as

at the beginning and end of that penod As the schemes do not
include any market-related performance conditions, no expense

15 recognised for awards that do not uttimately vest

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, as a
minmum, an expense 1s recognised as if the terms had not been
modified In addition, an expense 1s recognised for any modification,
which mcreases the total far value of the share-based payrment
arrangement, or 1s otherwisa beneficial to the employee as
measured at the date of modification

Where an equity-settled award 1s cancelled, it 1s treated as if it

had vested on the date of cancellation, and any expense not yet
recognised for the award s recogmsed mmedatsly However, if a
new award s substituted for the cancelled award, and designated
as a replacernent award on the date that # 1s granted, the cancelled
and new awards are {reated as If they were a modification of the
ongnal award, as described mn the previous paragraph

The Group has an employee share trust for the granting of non-
transferable options to executives and senior employees Shares
in the Group held by the employee share trust are treated as
nvestrnent in own shares and are recorded at cost as a deduction
from equity (see note 24 of the Group’s accounts)

The Group has taken advantage of the transitional provisions of FRS
20 in respect of equity-settled awards and has apphed FRS 20 only
to equity-settled awards granted after 7 Novemnber 2002 that had
not vested on or before 1 January 2005

Taxation

Corporation Tax payable 18 provided on taxable profits at the current
tax rate Where group relief 1s surrendered from cther subsidianes
n the Group, the Company is required to pay to the surrenderning
company an amount equal to the loss surrendered muttiphed by

the current tax rate

Deferred tax 1s recogrised in respect of all timing differences that
have orignated but not reversed at the balance sheet date where
transactions or events that result in an obligation to pay more, or
anght to pay less, tax in the future have occurred at the balance
sheet date with the exception that deferred tax assets are
recognised only to the extent that the Directors consider that it 1s ‘
more likely than not that there will be suitable taxable profits from |
which the future reversal of the undertying timing differences can !
be deducted

Deferred tax 1s measured on a non-discounted basis at the tax rates
that are expected to apply In penods in which timing differences
reverse, based on tax rates and faws enacted or substantively
enacted at the balance sheet date |
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2 Share based payments
The analysis and disclosures in relation 1o share based payments i1s given in the Group's accounts in note 25

3 Intangible assets

Intollectal
property
£'000
Cost
Al 1 January 2006 and 31 December 2006 169,737
Amortisation
At 1 January 2006 17.016
Charge in the year 8,500
At 31 December 2006 25,518
Net book value
At 31 December 2006 144,221
At 31 Decernber 2005 182,721
4 Tangible fixed assets
Fraahok] land
and bulldngs
£:000
Cost
At 1 January 2006 and 31 Decemnber 2006 42,350
Depreciation
Al 1 January 2006 8,941
Charge in the year 1615
At 31 December 2006 10,556
Net book value
At 31 December 2006 31,794
At 31 December 2005 33,409
5 Investments
Shares n Loans o
subsiiary subscliary
undertalangs  undertakings  kvestments Total
£000 £'000 £'000 £000
Cost
At 1 January 2006 164,056 9.7 25 203,998
Addtions 9,381 85 - 9466
Disposals - - - -
Repaid - B4 - &4
At 31 December 2006 203,437 9,918 25 213,380
Amourts pronnded
Al 1 January 2006 47,932 2,754 25 50,111
Dunng the year 17,992 - - 17,992
Drsposals - - ~ -
At 31 December 2005 65,924 2,754 25 68,703
Net book value
At 31 December 2006 137,513 7,164 - 144,677
At 31 December 2005 146,124 7163 - 153287

Details of the principal nvestments at 31 December in which the Company holds more than 20% of the nominal value of ordinary share
capial are gven In the Group accounts in note 15
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Notes to the Company financial statements continued

6 Debtors
2006 2005
£000 £000
Amount owed by subsidiary undertaking 90,000 90,000
Other debtors 127 127
Corporation tax 1,013 600 !
01,140 00,727 1
7 Creditors. amounts falling due within one year
2006 2005
£000 £000
Amount owed to subsidiary undertaking 175,027 179,580 |
Accnaals 27 462 ?
175,054 180,042
8 Creditors- amounts falling due after more than one year
2006 2005
£'000 £000
Defesred ncome 62,704 71,704
9 Prowvisions for habilities and charges
Defarred
tavation
£'000
At 1 January 2006 1,339
Capttal allowances in advance of depreciation (141)
At 31 December 2006 1,198
10 Reconciliation of shareholders’ funds and movements on reserves
Profit Total
Share Share  redemption Merger andioss shareholders’
capital premum reserve rasene account furds
£000 £:000 £000 £000 £000 £:000
At 1 January 2005 9,489 73,920 100 55,990 68,930 208,429
Shares 1ssued 16 760 - - - 776
Total recogrised losses n the year - - - - (17.261) (17,261)
Cost of share-based payments - - - - (366) {366)
Equity dndends - - - - (14465 (14465
At 31 December 2005 9,505 74,680 100 55,990 36,838 177,113
Shares issued 66 2317 - - - 2383
Total recogrised gans n the year - - - - 79,553 79,553
Cost of share-based payments - - - - 1411 1,411
Bonus issue 74,442 (74,442) - - - -
Expenses on bonus issue - (308) - - - (308}
Share redemphion (74,442 - 74,442 - (73885 (73,8865
Expensss on redemption - - - - {58) 6
Equity dvdends - - - - (13,3269 {13,326
At 31 December 2008 9,57 2,247 74,542 55,890 30,534 172,884

Dunng the year the Company effected a Retumn of Capital to Shareholders Detalls of these transaction are given in the Group's consolidated

financial statements 1n note 24
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11 Contingent habilities

The Company has gven a guarantee n the normal course of business to a suppher of a subsidiary undertaking for an amount not exceeding
£16,939,000 (2005 £15,225,000)

The Company has given a guarantee in the normal course of business 1o a customer of a subsidrary undertaking for an amount not
exceeding £24,933,000 (2005 £14,158,000)

The Company has provided cross guarantees in respect of certain bank loans and overdrafts of ts subsidiary undertakings
The amount outstanding at 31 December s £39,117,000 (2005 £28,144,000)

12 Related party transactions

The Company has taken the exemption n FRS 8 3 not to disclose transactions with other Group Companies
The Company has not traded with any of the related parties disclosed in note 28 of the Group's accounts

13 Auditors remuneration

All auditors’ remuneration 1s borne by Computacenter (UK) Litd a fully-owned UK subsidiary of the Company
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Group five year financial review
Year ended 31 December

Prapared under UK GAAP Prepared under IFRS
2002 2003 2004 2005 2006
£m £m £m £'m £'m
Revenue 19267 24813 24106 22852 2,269.9
Pre-excephonal operating profit from contnuing operations 562 659 662 289 336
Profit before tax 551 652 679 340 32.9
Profit for the year from continung operatons 370 463 483 204 18.9
Diluted eamings per share (excluding exceptional tems) 19 3p 246p 256p 118p 13.8p
Year-end headcount 6,022 9,716 9610 9,370 9,329
Group summary balance sheet
Year ended 31 December
Prepared under UK GAAP Prepared under IFRS
2002 2003 2004 2005 2006
£'m 'm £m £m £'m

Tangible assets 967 1006 899 816 84.9
Intangible assets )4 42 79 95 9.9
Investrments 124 10 04 03 -
Deferred tax asset - - 15 55 6.2
Inventonies 957 1341 1189 1002 946
Trade and other recenvables 2869 4423 3004 3830 4273
Prepayments - - 552 635 504
Forward currency contracts - - - 02 01
Cash 921 970 1382 164 8 779
Assets held m disposal groups held for sale - - 92 - -
Current kabilites {328 5) {466 8) {468 6 {461 9) {459.8)
Non-current fiahiities (16) (139 {198 (160) (26.4)
Liabiites included in disposal groups held for sale - - B9 - -
Net assets 2539 3085 3253 3307 265.1
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Group financial calendar

Annual General Meeing 4 May 2007
Final dmdend record date 4 May 2007
Final dmdend payment date 31 May 2007
Intenrn resutts 2007 date 11 Septernber 2007
Intenm dwvidend record date 21 September 2007

Intenm dnadend payment date 19 October 2007
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